
Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded on tape 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Maria Lipzith 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74353 
 

 
 

 
Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Sandra Newbould 
Tel: 24 74792 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL CARE) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Chapman (Chair) - Weetwood; 

P Ewens - Hyde Park and Woodhouse; 

Mrs R Feldman - Alwoodley; 

C Fox - Adel and Wharfedale; 

A Gabriel - Beeston and Holbeck; 

T Hanley - Bramley and Stanningley; 

J McKenna - Armley; 

V Morgan - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

F Robinson - Calverley and Farsley; 

A Taylor - Gipton and Harehills; 

E Taylor - Chapel Allerton; 

 
 
 

CO-OPTEES 
 

Ms Joy Fisher – Alliance Service Users and Carers 
Sally Morgan – Equality Issues 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded.) 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 

 



 

 
C 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal / prejudicial interests for 
the purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local 
Government Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of 
the Members Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 9TH SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 9th September 2009. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  DAY CARE SERVICES UPDATE 
 
To consider a report form the Director of Adult 
Social Services which provides the board with an 
update on the consultation exercise undertaken 
with regard to Day Care Services in Leeds. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 
 

 

8   
 

  COMMISSIONING IN ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
 
To received and consider a report form the Deputy 
Director, Strategic Commissioning which updates 
the board on progress made with the review of the 
Neighbourhood Network Services and the 
inspection made in 2008 by the Commission for 
Social Care Inspection (CSCI). 
 
 

7 - 14 



 

 
D 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

9   
 

  INDEPENDENCE WELLBEING AND CHOICE - 
ACTION PLAN UPDATE 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which provides 
an overview of the progress made by Adult Social 
Services against the Independence Wellbeing and 
Choice action plan. 
 
 

15 - 
32 

10   
 

  PERSONALISATION INQUIRY UPDATE 
 
To receive and consider a report from the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development which provides 
an update on the progress and work undertaken so 
far by the Personalisation Working Group.  
 
 

33 - 
56 

11   
 

  WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To receive a report by the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the Board’s current work 
programme. 
 
 

57 - 
76 

12   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Wednesday, 11th November 2009 at 10.00 a.m. 
(Pre-meeting at 9.30 a.m.) 
  
 

 

 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 

SCRUTINY BOARD (ADULT SOCIAL CARE) 

WEDNESDAY, 9TH SEPTEMBER, 2009 

PRESENT: Councillor J Chapman in the Chair 

 Councillors P Ewens, C Fox, T Hanley, 
V Morgan and E Taylor 

CO-OPTEES:  J Fisher and S Morgan 

31 Declarations of Interest  

Councillor E Taylor declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 11, Terms of 
Reference, Inquiry into ‘Supporting Working Age Adults with Severe and 
Enduring Mental Health Problems’ due to her employment with the NHS – 
Minute No. 39 refers. 

Councillor J Chapman declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 11, Terms 
of Reference, Inquiry into ‘Supporting Working Age Adults with Severe and 
Enduring Mental Health Problems’ due to having a relative employed in a 
private sector care home – Minute No. 39 refers. 

32 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Mrs R 
Feldman, A Gabriel, J McKenna, F Robinson and A Taylor. 

33 Minutes - 29th July 2009 and 20th August 2009  

RESOLVED –

(1) That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2009, be confirmed 
as a correct record subject to the following amendment: 

Minute No.20 – Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) – Annual 
Report (2008/09) – final bullet point be amended to read 
‘Clarification that membership of the Steering Group was open to all 
Patients, Carers and Service Users’

(2) That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 August 2009, be 
confirmed as a correct record. 

34 Matters arising from the Minutes  

Minute 20 – Leeds Local Involvement Network (LINk) – Annual Report 
(2008/09)
It was reported that a financial breakdown would be provided to Members in 
September.

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 

Minute 21 – Leeds Strategic Plan Performance Report for Quarter 4 2008/09
The format currently being trialled would be brought to the Proposals Working 
Group on 29 September 2009. 

Minute 23 – Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Audit
The Independence Wellbeing and Choice Action Plan would be brought to the 
Proposals Working Group on 29 September 2009. 

Minute 29 – Older Peoples Day Services and Day Services for People with 
Learning Disabilities
Members were made aware of information that had been requested and that 
would be circulated prior to the October meeting.  This focussed on the 
following:

 Broken down by different sectors/groups, how many people have been 
refused day care and in which centres and on what grounds? 

 How many people have started going to day centres in the past 12 
months, by day centre? 

 For each day centre a breakdown of where people are travelling from 
to attend.

 Statistical representations of the 'Average day care attendance'. 

In response to concerns regarding the proposed day centre closures and the 
potential impact on Neighbourhood Networks, it was reported that there was 
regular consultation with the Neighbourhood Networks and further investment 
had been made.  It was also clarified that there is no direct budgetary link 
between Day Centres and Neighbourhood Networks.  Further information on 
the commissioning of Neighbourhood Networks would be brought to the 
Board in October. There was spare capacity across services and all day 
centre users would be offered alternative placements where necessary. 

Further discussion included the reporting of day centre provision to Area 
Committees and the consultation process.  It was reported that all Area 
Committees had been contacted regarding the consultation and Members 
would be informed of which Area Committees would be receiving reports.  
Alternative uses of day centre buildings would be considered as part of the 
consultation.

35 Performance Report Quarter 1 2009-10  

The report of the Head of Policy, Performance and  Improvement provided 
key Adult Social Care performance data for quarter 1.  Leeds Adult Social 
Care Quarter 1 performance had shown an overall improvement on last year’s 
out-turn and benchmarking information had shown that in a number of areas 
that Leeds Adult Social Care was among the best performers nationally. 

The following were in attendance for this item: 

 Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 

 Stuart Cameron-Strickland, Head of Policy, Performance and 
Improvement (Adult Social Care) 

 Marilyn Summers, Senior Performance Manager 

It was reported that the only area of significant concern was with regard to 
Delayed Transfers of Care and this was an issue with data quality, in general 
the department is in a good position. Work was ongoing with Health Service 
partners to address this and the complex national criteria involved.  Other 
areas where performance was poor in comparison to other authorities were 
brought to members attention and it was reported that robust action plans had 
been developed to maintain progress.  Year on year improvements had been 
noted across the range of performance indicators. 

In response to Members’ comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 

 Personalised care for those 14 years and over – there were various 
issues surrounding this and the Board would be considering transition 
from Children’s to Adult Social Care at a future meeting. 

 Staff qualifications and re-profiling of the workforce. 

RESOLVED – That the report and Quarter 1 Performance Information be 
noted.

36 Update Report on Mental Capacity Act 2005 & Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards

The report of the Director of Adult Social Services provided the Board with an 
update on the Mental Capacity Act 2005 and Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards. A copy of the Leeds Independent Mental Capacity Advocacy 
Service (LIMCAs) Annual Report was appended to the agenda. 

Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services and David Shields, 
Programme Manager were present for this item. 

Members attention was brought to the following key points: 

 Joint requirements with the PCT to meet requirements of Deprivation of 
Liberty provisions. 

 Available funding. 

 The Care Quality Commission (CQC) request for data regarding 
progress on the implementation of the Act and monitoring the progress. 

 Achievements made to date. 

In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 

 Grant allocation and budget planning in light of NHS funding potentially 
ceasing after 2009 and Government funding ceasing after 2011 – many 
government funding streams were due to end in 2011 and a 
comprehensive spending review would take place.  Some of the costs 
detailed in the report were ‘setting up’ costs and would not be needed 
in future years. 

 Activity in relation to Deprivation of Liberty referrals and the procedures 
involved. 

RESOLVED –

(1) That the report and key features highlighted be noted. 
(2) That the progress made in implementing the Act and its associated 

requirements along with the highlighted examples of progress 
highlighted in the Articulate Advocacy report be recognised. 

(3) That the Board receives a further update in 9 months time, when a 
full year of Deprivation of Liberty activity data will be available for 
full consideration. 

37 Adult Social Care Self Assessment 2008/09  

The report of the Deputy Director of Adult Social Care – Strategic 
Commissioning informed the Board of the Adult Social Services Self 
Assessment Survey (SAS) which was submitted to the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) in May 2009 as part of the annual performance 
assessment.

Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services and Stuart Cameron-
Strickland, Head of Policy, Performance and Improvement were in attendance 
for this item. 

Members attention was brought to the 7 main outcomes of the inspection and 
results of the 2007/08 CSCI inspection were compared to the 2008/09 Self 
Assessment rating.  It was reported that the outcomes were partly judged on 
capacity to improve and enabling change and leadership  - this involved the 
role of Officers and Elected Members.  Other areas concerned included value 
for money and use of resources.  Engagement had been undertaken with 
service users as part of the assessment and with other partners including the 
voluntary, community and faith sector.  Should the assessment be agreed, it 
would increase the status of the service. 

In response to Members’ comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 

 How to improve the overall status– it was reported that excellent 
ratings would be required in 4 of the outcomes to move up to an overall 
excellent rating of the service. 

 The need to increase personalisation and Direct Payments to improve 
the rating for Outcome 4 : Increased Choice and Control. It was noted 

Page 4



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 

that by March 2010 100 % of  new service users would have to be 
offered the option of a personal budget.

 Comparisons with other core cities – this information would be made 
available to Members. 

  Each Year improvement was measured against higher required 
standards than in the  previous year. 

 Funding issues. 

RESOLVED – That the report and summaries of performance improvement 
be noted. 

38 Inquiry Report, Major Adaptations for Disabled Adults - Formal 
Response  

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development detailed the 
responses of the Directors of the Adult Services and Environment and 
Neighbourhoods to the Board’s Inquiry into Major Adaptations for Disabled 
Adults.  It was reported that the Executive Board had approved the 
recommendations to these responses at its meeting on 26 August 2009. 

Sandie Keene, Director of Adult Social Services and Andy Beattie, Head of 
Housing and Pollution Control were in attendance for this item. 

Disappointment was expressed at the number of recommendations only 
partially agreed by the Departments, and particularly in relation to 
Recommendation 9 regarding planning guidance for Lifetime Homes 
Standards which had not been agreed.  It was reported that the Executive 
Board had agreed that officers offer a more robust response to 
recommendation 9, which falls under the responsibility of the Director of 
Development . 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted. 

39 Terms of Reference - Inquiry into 'Supporting Working Age Adults with 
Severe and Enduring Mental Health Problems'  

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development detailed the 
scope, timetable and submission of evidence into the planned inquiry into 
Supporting Working Age Adults with Severe and Enduring Mental Health 
Problems.  The Executive Board Member and Director of Adult Social 
Services had been consulted regarding the Inquiry and had welcomed the 
proposals. 

RESOLVED –

(1) That the report be noted and the terms of reference into the 
Supporting Working Age Adults with Severe and Enduring Mental 
Health Problems Inquiry be noted. 

(2) That it be noted that the terms of reference may incorporate 
additional information during the inquiry should the working group of 

Page 5



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2009 

the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) identify any further scope for 
inquiry within the area of Supporting Working Age Adults with 
Severe and Enduring Mental Health Problems. 

(Councillor Fox left the meeting at 12.05 p.m. following the conclusion of this 
item).

40 Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) - Work Programme  

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a 
report which detailed the Board’s Work Programme.  Also attached to the 
report was a copy of the Council’s Forward Plan and recent Executive Board 
minutes.

Members were given a recap of issues discussed earlier in the meeting which 
would be followed up and included the following: 

 Further information on Performance Indicators.  

 Area Committee consultation on Day Centres. 

 That the Board receive a further report on the Mental Capacity Act and 
Deprivation of Liberty in 9 months time. 

 With regard to minutes 37 comparative Core Cities data.  

RESOLVED –

(1) That general progress reported at the meeting be noted. 
(2) That the work programme be amended as appropriate and agreed. 

41 Date and Time of Next Meeting  

Wednesday, 7 October 2009 at 10.00 a.m. (pre-meeting for Members at 9.30 
a.m.)

Page 6



 
Report of the Deputy Director, Strategic Commissioning 
 
Scrutiny Board, Adult Social Care 
 
Date: 7 October 2009 
 
Subject: Adult Social Care Commissioning Services Update 
 

        
 
 
Executive Summary 

This report provides Members of the Scrutiny Board, Adult Social Care (ASC) with an update 
on progress made with the review of the Neighbourhood Network Services and the 
inspection made in 2008 by the Commission for Social Care Inspection of ASC services, with 
specific reference to older people and safeguarding.  This update was requested by the 
Scrutiny Board at its meeting in March 2009.  ASC Commissioning Services has, in 
partnership with NHS Leeds, Supporting People and the Corporate Procurement Unit, made 
substantial progress with the review of Neighbourhood Networks, including the development 
of a funding formula, a set of service outcomes, a new service specification and a well 
advanced programme of service procurement.  Support for these initiatives has been 
secured from the Neighbourhood Networks themselves, wider stakeholder groups and the 
Executive Board of the Council.  It is anticipated that the new contracts with the 
Neighbourhood Networks will be in place by July 2010. 
 
The Inspection Action Plan prepared in response to the Commission for Social Care 
Inspection report of 2008 is now well advanced and good progress has been made against 
all the actions which relate specifically to Commissioning services, including: 
 

• The procurement of an expert partner to advise on the modernisation of buildings-
based services 

• Development of service specifications for in-house services 

• Formal joint commissioning arrangements with NHS Leeds 

• Development of quality assurance systems for commissioned services 

• Joint investment and commissioning with NHS Leeds 
 

      All of the above work has drawn positive feedback from the Care Quality Commission                             
     (formerly the Commission for Social Care Inspection). 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Tim O’Shea 
 
Tel: 2474258 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 7



1.0 Purpose Of This Report 

1.1 To provide Members of the Scrutiny Board (ASC) with a further report of the 
progress made and future plans for delivering the Neighbourhood Networks review 
and re-tendering exercise.  The report also describes the progress made by ASC 
Commissioning in response to the Independence, Wellbeing and Choice Inspection 
of 2008. 

2.0   Background Information 

2.1 At the ASC Scrutiny Board meeting in March 2009, the Chief Officer ASC 
Commissioning presented a report detailing the procurement timetable for the 
Neighbourhood Networks review process.  In addition, the report included 
information on commissioning intentions in response to the Commission for Social 
Care Inspection report on ASC services, with specific reference to Older People and 
Safeguarding, and the resulting Action Plan.  The Scrutiny Board requested a 
further progress report in six months’ time, and this report fulfills that request. 

2.2 The Neighbourhood Networks review commenced in March 2008 as a joint 
commissioning exercise between ASC, Supporting People, NHS Leeds and the 
Corporate Procurement Unit.  The aim of the review was to evaluate current 
provision, establish more equitable resource allocation across the city, and 
introduce service specifications based on desired outcomes for older people.  It was 
originally envisaged that new contracts would be in place by April 2010, but this has 
now been deferred to October 2010.   

2.3 The Independence, Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan was presented to 
the Executive Board in December 2009 agreed and adopted immediately thereafter.   
In total, ten of the recommendations related specifically to commissioning.  The 
recommendations require commissioners to procure improved information and 
advocacy services, move away from the provision of building-based residential and 
day care services, develop formal contractual relationships with directly provided 
services, improve quality assurance systems and develop joint commissioning 
systems and processes with NHS Leeds and Supporting People.  This ambitious 
programme of transformation in Commissioning has a range of commencement and 
completion targets, beginning in October 2008 and concluding in April 2010.   

3.0 Neighbourhood Networks Review 

3.1 Since March 2009. extensive consultation has been carried out with the 
Neighbourhood Networks and wider stakeholder groups to seek understanding of, 
and support for, all aspects of the review process.  It has been acknowledged that 
the Neighbourhood Networks have evidenced their ability to successfully combat the 
social isolation which many older people experience, and increase their involvement 
and contribution to the life of their local community.  Furthermore, the 
Neighbourhood Networks are key to the longer-term market development of 
provider services, supporting the transformation of traditional buildings institutional 
services into those which sustain independence and promote choice.  Thus, the 
success of the Neighbourhood Networks review is key to our overall strategic plans 
for the modernisation of older people’s services.  

Page 8



3.2 A funding formula has now been devised which will ensure the equitable distribution 
of resources to the Neighbourhood Networks across the city, based on need rather 
than historical piecemeal allocations.  The formula will underpin the process of 
procurement.  An additional sum of £360k investment has been identified by ASC 
from 1 April 2010 to ensure that the full beneficial effects of the formula are received 
by all areas of the city. 

3.3 The formal procurement exercise has been designed as a restricted process under 
the Council’s Corporate Procurement Rules in order to encourage and facilitate the 
enhancement and development of local services, and preserve what is best about 
the Neighbourhood Networks. 

3.4 Henceforth, services will be commissioned to deliver prescribed outcomes for 
service users and carers.  To this end, a set of outcomes has been devised for 
future Neighbourhood Network services.  Through consultation, these have received 
overall support from the organisations and the wider stakeholder community. 

3.5 In early August 2009, a Pre-Qualification Questionnaire was sent to all 38 
Neighbourhood Network Schemes to determine the appropriateness of current 
providers to deliver the required outcomes.  After their return, a shortlist of 
organisations will be drawn up and invitations to tender issued.  Successful 
organisations will be given five year contracts with the option to extend for up to 
three consecutive years, thereby giving organisations much needed, longer-term 
security of funding.  In order to ensure that any TUPE mobilisation is accounted for, 
it is anticipated that contracts will commence from 1 October 2010.   

3.6 The following additional resources are being organised to support the 
Neighbourhood Networks during the procurement period and beyond: 

• A Business Development Officer has been recruited to provide professional 
advice to the Schemes in order that they can fulfill the requirements of the 
procurement process 

• Temporary staff are being recruited to assist the Schemes with the monitoring 
requirements asked of them 

• A series of workshops has been designed to assist the Schemes with 
developing long-term sustainability of their services. 

3.7 In July 2009, a report was taken to the Executive Board of the Council outlining all 
the above proposals and was approved.   

3.8 Between October 2009 and March 2010 the formal procurement process will be 
enacted leading to the award of contracts (see Appendix 1 for details). 

4.0 ASC Commissioning Response to the Independence, Wellbeing & Choice 
Inspection Report 

4.1 The Inspection recommended the commissioning of improved information and 
advocacy.  As a result, a review is being undertaken of all information and advocacy 
services currently commissioned, which commenced in August 2009.  This will lead 
to the production of a new service specification and a subsequent procurement 
exercise to deliver new services in line with the requirements of ‘Independence, 
Wellbeing and Choice’. 

Page 9



4.2 An external expert partner has been procured to generate an options appraisal for 
ASC on the modernisation of its buildings-based residential services, reporting to 
the Directorate Management Team. Part of this work has entailed a detailed 
analysis of the overall future need for residential and nursing care within the city 
based on the anticipated demographic trends and current utilization rates. Once 
their report has been received, which we anticipate will be in late September, a 
programme plan will be devised by Commissioners, in partnership with the directly 
provided services, to take actions forward based on agreed options, subject to the 
necessary consultation and approval processes.  This will be reported to the 
Council’s Executive Board in November 2009. 

4.3 In order that directly provided services have clear service specifications, service 
requirements and quality assurance systems in line with Independence, Wellbeing 
and Choice, commissioners are currently devising and agreeing with providers new 
service level agreements.  This will place directly provided services under broadly 
the same arrangements as externally commissioned services 

4.4 Formal joint commissioning arrangements are currently being developed with NHS 
Leeds which are anticipated to deliver benefits in terms of value for money and 
more appropriately aligned and integrated services, notable examples include 
Homecare and Nursing Care provision. 

4.5 A range of quality assurance systems are in development to ensure an emphasis on 
prevention and early intervention, producing outcomes which promote 
independence and the avoidance of the need for higher level support services. 

4.6 Jointly with NHS Leeds, a more rational and planned approach to investment and 
market management is being developed which will facilitate the personalisation, 
choice and control agenda.  This will involve a more robust approach to 
commissioning planning and strategy. 

4.7 Where joint services exist between Health and Social Care, work will be undertaken 
to ensure the benefits of such synergies are maximised.  For example, an 
Intermediate Tier commissioning strategy is currently being devised which will span 
both health and social care inputs to people with such needs.. 

4.8 All of the initiatives outlined above will contribute to the development of excellent 
commissioning services, integrated with NHS Leeds, leading to the production of 
high quality, outcome-based services provided in a mixed health and social care 
economy in Leeds. 

5.0  Legal And Resource Implications 

5.1 The programme of activity highlighted in this report presents challenges to all staff 
engaged within Commissioning, in Adult Social Care, the wider Council and within 
and among partners.  The commissioning plan underway in relation to the 
Neighbourhood Network scheme provides a good example of how the capacity of 
those staff can be maximised by working collaboratively on a joint priority. 

5.2 As we move to increasingly joint commissioning endeavours, we will ensure that 
good governance principles are maintained in relation to the activity under 
commission and that any use of pooled funds is managed by the appropriate legal 
instrument. 

Page 10



5.3 As has already been noted, some additional funding is likely to need to be 
generated to ensure that all the areas covered by the Neighbourhood Network 
schemes commence new contractual arrangements without experiencing detriment.  
Various options are being explored to ensure that the sum required can be built into 
the 2010/11 budget allocation. 

6.0  Conclusions 

6.1 The adequacy, or otherwise, of strategic commissioning of adult social care services 
now forms a key determinant in the overall assessment of Councils and their 
partners’ efficacy in supporting adults in need.  The activity described in this report 
has provided a positive starting point as public services become subject to new and 
more integrated external assurance processes. 

6.2 However, this report also indicates that successfully embedding a strategic 
commissioning approach to improving a range of outcomes for adults will take time 
and require the development of new skills and expertise by those engaged in its 
delivery. 

7.0 Recommendations 

7.1 Members of the Scrutiny Board are asked to consider and note of the information 
contained in the report and its appendices. 

 

Background Documents referred to in this report 

 

1. Our Health, Our Care, Our Say  -  DoH 

2. Independence, Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Report 

3. Independence, Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan 

4. Independence, Wellbeing and Choice  –  DoH 

5. Performance Framework for Care Quality Commission  -  Feb 09 

6. Putting People First  -  DoH 

7. Executive Board Report NNS – July 2009. 

Page 11



 Appendix 1 

PROCUREMENT TIMETABLE – V14 
PROJECT REF: 4092 
 

Neighbourhood Networks commissioning 
 
(Based upon restricted procedure process for Annexe 1B service –  
Unknown service packaging strategy)  
 

Task 
no 

Activity 
 

Responsibility Achievement Date 

 Shortlisting stage 
 

  

21 Project brief to be Incorporated into 
the Pre-Qualification Questionnaire 
(PQQ) 

 
Project Manager 

 
June 2009 

22 Create technical questions for  
Pre-Qualification Questionnaire (PQQ) 
and Evaluation Model for PQQ 
technical questions 

Project Team  
June 2009 

23 Draft advertisement and agree where 
to be published  

Project Team July 2009 

24 Finalise PQQ and Advertise project Project Team By 31 July 2009 

25 Issue PQQ (Publish docs on SCMS)  
(Minimum of 6 weeks)  

PU  
By 31 July 2009 

26 Deadline for PQQ Response 
 

   --------------- 16 Sept 2009 

27 Disseminate PQQ responses and 
evaluation criteria to evaluation panel 

PU Week Comm  
21 Sept 2009 

28 Evaluation and vetting of PQQ 
submissions 

Evaluation team / 
PU 

21 – 30 Sept 2009 

29 Prepare and Agree Shortlist of 
organisations 

Evaluation team / 
PU 

By end of Sept 2009 

30 Put Project on LCC forward plan Project manager 4 months prior to 
decision date 

31 Tender stage   

32 Finalise outcome based specification, 
tender evaluation model and criteria  

Project Manager / 
Evaluation team /  

By end of August 2009 

33 Draft Terms & Conditions applicable to 
Contracts 

PU legal team Early to mid Sept 2009 

34 Report to Project Board to approve 
tender documentation and shortlisted 
organisations 

Project manager / 
project board 

Week comm  
5 Oct 2009 

35 Invite tenders from short listed 
organisations (Minimum of 6 weeks)  

PU  
14 October 2009 

36 Period for submission of tenders  
(7-8 weeks) 
 

     ---------  
14 Oct – 9 Dec 2009 

37 Disseminate Tender evaluation criteria 
to evaluation panel 

PU / Evaluation 
team 

Early Dec 2009 

38 Place on Forward Plan (Reminder) 
 

Project Manager  

39 Tender submission return date ----------------------- 9 Dec 2009 

40 Disseminate tender submissions for 
evaluation 

PU  Week Comm  
14 Dec 2009 

41 Evaluation of tender submissions / 
method statements  

Evaluation team By 24 December 2009 

Page 12



 

42 Select organisations for award Project team / 
Evaluation team 

Early Jan 2010 

43 Project Board to ratify decisions for 
awards 

Project Board Mid Jan 2010 

 Contract award and lead in   

44 Delegated decision process for all 
awards – Key Decision  
(also to the NHS Leeds Board) 

Project Manager End of Jan to  
End of Feb 2010 

45 Award Contracts  
(over 3 – 4 weeks) 
 

Adult Social Care 
contracts team – 
contracts drafted 
by PU legal team 

 
March 2010 

46 Lead-in period / mobilisation period 
Including TUPE lead in period if TUPE 
was to apply 

 
-------------- 

April to End  
of June 2010  

47 Start date for Contract  
 

 
-------------- 

01 JULY 2010 
 
 

48  Review of Procurement Process 
 

 August 2010?? 
 

 
- Gateway review procedure not deemed necessary – Project Board is suggested to consist of 
Tim O’Shea (ASC), Tony Bailey (Proc unit), Mick Ward (ASC/NHS Leeds) to sign off 
recommendations / decisions 
 

- Timetable accounts for full potential of TUPE transfer of 
staff to apply to all existing Neighbourhood Networks 

 
 
Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 
 
PQQ – Pre qualification Questionnaire 
PU – Procurement Unit 
Project Team – To be a core established from Provisional Project Team and/or other 
stakeholders/Panel 
SCMS – Council’s tender/contract management website (Supplier Contract Management System) 
Evaluation Team – to be derived from Project Team (Panel) 
 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board Adult Social Care 
 
Date:  7th October 2009 
 
Subject: Independence Wellbeing and Choice Inspection Action Plan: August 2009 

 

        
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board with 
information relating to the performance of Adult Social Services against the action 
plan, formulated from the findings of the Independence Wellbeing and Choice 
review undertaken by CSCI.  

 
1.2 On the 3rd of December the Executive Board received the Independence, Wellbeing 

and Choice report. Associated with the reports is an action plan defining targets for 
improvement by Adult Social Services in order to resolve the problems raised by the 
inspector. In response the Executive Board resolved that the report and associated 
plan be referred to Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for their oversight of 
performance against the targets set out in the action plan. 

 
1.3 This matter was brought to the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board on the 10th of 

December 2008 for discussion. The board recommending that the Proposals 
Working Group (ASC) meet on a monthly basis to monitor overall progress of Adult 
Social Services performance against the objectives set out in the action plan and 
report directly to the Scrutiny Board. The Independence Wellbeing and Choice 
summary and progress reports were brought before the Proposals Working Group 
on the 29th September 2009. 

 
1.4 One representative from the Health Scrutiny Board was initially invited to sit on the 

Proposals Working Group. A nominee was not present at the working group 
meeting. 

 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould
  

Tel: 247 4792 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 15



 
 
 
1.5 Draft minutes from the Proposals Working Group 29 September 2009 are to follow 

as appendix 1.  
 

1.6 The Independence Wellbeing and Choice Progress Report August 2009 is attached 
as appendix 2.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 The Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board is asked to note the draft minutes from the 
Proposals Working Group and the summary and progress report for August 2009. 

 
2.2 In addition, the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board  is specifically asked to: 
 

2.2.1 Consider the outcome of the August 2009 summary and progress report, 
commenting on any specific aspects included.  

2.2.2 Determine if there are any specific / further areas that require additional 
scrutiny by the Proposals Working Group. 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None. 

Page 16



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

2
.3

2
4

.1
 (

a
)

4
.1

2
4

.4

4
.2

 (
a

)

4
.2

 (
b

)
7

.1
 (

b
)

4
.2

 (
c
)

9
.7

4
.3

 (
a

)
2

0
.3

5
.1

5
.2

1
8

.2

A
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n

d
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 m
e

t.

A
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
.

A
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

.

L
e

e
d

s
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
, 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
  

a
n

d
 C

h
o

ic
e

 I
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
: 

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

 R
e

p
o

rt
 A

u
g

u
s

t 
2

0
0

9

T
h

is
 P

e
ri

o
d

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 A

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

h
is

 R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
ri

o
d

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 q
u

a
lit

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

o
:-

  
D

M
T

 B
o

a
rd

 (
m

o
n

th
ly

),
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 v
ia

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 &

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
, 

S
c
ru

ti
n

y
 b

o
a

rd
.

C
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 l
a

u
n

c
h

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

m
a

p
s
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

c
ie

s
, 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 f
o

r 
k
e

y
 r

o
le

s
 

a
n

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

 A
d

u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

.

N
e

x
t 

P
e

ri
o

d

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 d
u

e
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 b
y

 t
h

e
 n

e
x

t 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

ri
o

d

E
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
s
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 t

h
e

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 s

k
ill

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

.

T
h

is
 P

e
ri

o
d

O
v

e
rd

u
e

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

 t
h

is
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 P
e

ri
o

d

A
 w

e
b

 s
it
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

A
g

re
e

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 s
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 l
e

a
d

s
.

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e

n
ts

E
n

s
u

re
 f

in
a

l 
d

ra
ft

 o
f 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

a
s
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
 i
s
 t

a
k
e

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 

o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
.

U
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
n

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 &

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
.

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 -

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 r

a
is

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
.

M
o

n
it
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
u

b
g

ro
u

p
s
.

O
v

e
rv

ie
w

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 s
o

m
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
n

o
t 

b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
 d

u
e

 t
o

:

- 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 N

H
S

 -
 L

e
e

d
s
  

re
q

u
ir
e

d
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
o

f 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
, 

s
y
s
te

m
, 

p
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
.

- 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

ie
s
 (

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

c
a

re
rs

, 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

) 
to

 g
a

in
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
.

- 
W

h
ils

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 s

o
m

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 o

th
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
e

 t
o

 l
ig

h
t 

w
h

ic
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 w

o
rk

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
.

- 
S

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
e

c
o

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 S
w

in
e

 F
lu

 d
u

ti
e

s
, 

th
is

 m
ig

h
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 t

im
e

 o
f 

s
o

m
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
.

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

R
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
ri

o
d

A
ll 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h

 s
o

m
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
e

ll 
in

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

. 
 I

t 
is

 b
e

c
o

m
in

g
 m

o
re

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
a

re
n

t 
th

a
t 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 j
o

in
tl
y
 o

w
n

e
d

 b
y
 A

S
C

 a
n

d
 N

H
S

 L
e

e
d

s
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 g
o

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 c
le

a
ra

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
v
a

l 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 

d
e

la
y
 i
n

 c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

ti
m

e
.W

o
rk

 o
n

 s
o

m
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.

- 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

e
t 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

  
v
ig

o
ro

u
s
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 a

re
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
e

d
 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

 a
n

d
 e

x
te

rn
a

lly
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

.

- 
 A

d
v
o

c
a

c
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll 

a
n

d
 v

a
ri
o

u
s
 m

e
th

o
d

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 f

o
c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 

g
ro

u
p

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

s
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
, 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

  
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
o

c
a

c
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 u
ti
lis

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll 
a

d
v
o

c
a

c
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
. 

- 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

S
C

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 t
a

rg
e

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
, 

th
e

s
e

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
m

e
d

iu
m

 e
.g

 f
u

lly
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 W

e
b

s
it
e

, 
N

e
w

s
s
h

e
e

t 
fo

r 
c
a

re
rs

, 

b
o

o
k
le

ts
.

R
is

k
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

D
ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e

l

 A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

N
o

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d

G
u

id
a

n
c

e
 o

n
  

R
A

G
 R

e
p

o
rt

in
g

 

E
it
h

e
r 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 n

o
t 

o
n

 t
ra

c
k
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

/o
r 

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ri
s
k
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 t

im
e

 

N
o

t 
d

u
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f

s
e

lf
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 c

a
re

 i
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 r
is

k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 f
o

r 
p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
.

Q
A

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

s
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(a

s
 i
n

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 2

.2
 a

n
d

 2
.3

) 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 17



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

1
.1

M
u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

e
e
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 o

f 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

C
h
a
ir
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

, 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 

s
e
c
u
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

a
p
id

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g

S
e
p
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8

A
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 v

ia
  
w

ri
tt
e
n
 

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 (

M
O

U
) 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 

s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
, 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 (

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

S
e
p
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

S
e
p
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-0

9
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 j
o
in

tl
y
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-1

0
J
u
l-
0
9

A
ll 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

la
n
 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 &

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

0
9
/1

0
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
e
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

S
e
p
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8

A
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

re
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

fo
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 v

ia
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 p

o
s
t 
S

e
p
t 
0
8
 b

y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
o
r.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
fi
n
e
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 C

h
ie

f 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 

to
 e

m
b
e
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

1
.5

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
to

 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 a

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

c
h
e
c
k
lis

t 
a
s
 a

n
 a

id
e
 m

e
m

o
ir
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
y
 

is
s
u
e
s
 f
o
r 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

in
 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-0

9

C
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 a
u
d
it
 s

h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
 

fi
le

 n
o
te

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

 

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
  
J
a
n
e
 

M
o
ra

n
, 
 G

ra
h
a
m

 

H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y
 

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
) 

.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

1
.6

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 d

o
 s

o
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

E
a
c
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 o

n
 r

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8

A
ll 

fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 t
e
a
m

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 

o
n
 r

o
le

s
 &

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 (

D
e
p
u
ty

 

H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

A
u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
w

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
in

d
in

g
s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
.

o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 s
ta

ti
c
.

o
v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
 d

ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 d
e
te

ri
o
ra

ti
n
g
.

A
U

G
U

S
T

  
P

R
O

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
P

O
R

T

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 u
rg

e
n

tl
y
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 a

re
 i
n

v
e
s
ti

g
a
te

d
, 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
s
 d

e
v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 w
h

e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
, 
W

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 &

 C
h

o
ic

e
 I
n

s
p

e
c

ti
o

n
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
  
J
a
n
e
 

M
o
ra

n
, 
 G

ra
h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
 

S
te

v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y
 (

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

L
e
tt
e
r 

to
 a

ll 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

te
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 l
in

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

1
.7

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
a
u
d
it
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 &

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d

R
e
v
ie

w
 2

0
 s

a
m

p
le

d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 c

a
s
e
s
 b

y
 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
to

 a
s
c
e
rt

a
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

  
S

tu
a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 -

 

S
tr

ic
k
la

n
d

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
, 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 (

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

1
.4

S
ta

ff
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
ro

te
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 

im
m

e
d
ia

te
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 m

in
im

u
m

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

B
o
a
rd

 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

A
 H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 w

it
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

s
 

w
o
rk

.

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 M
O

U
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 t
o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
. 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Q

A
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
.

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 &

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 

1
.2

M
u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 m

e
e
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
te

c
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

T
h
e
 T

O
R

 o
f 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
re

 r
e
-w

ri
tt
e
n
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 

to
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
.

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
,

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

  
(S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
.3

P
a
g
e
 2

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 18



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

9
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n
, 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

M
ic

h
e
le

 T
y
n
a
n
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

J
a
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

F
u
tu

re
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

 H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

M
T

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 

3
0
.0

7
.0

9
. 
X

-r
e
f 
2
.1

,2
.3

 a
n
d
 2

.4

A
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
  
H

e
a
d
 o

f 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 
S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r.

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 o

n
 

a
 m

o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
e
s
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 3

 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
h
a
ir
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

it
y
 t
o
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
 

c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

8

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 f
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

e
d
.

 H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

to
 t
h
e
s
e
 p

o
s
ts

.
J
a
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
F

u
tu

re
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fo
r 

p
e
o
p
le

. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

A
n
d
re

w
 W

a
ts

o
n

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

2
.1

E
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

o
s
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

. 
  
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 a

s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
:

- 
a
d
u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

- 
in

te
ra

g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

- 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
re

c
o
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 -

 c
a
s
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l,
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 c

a
re

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w

O
c
t-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

A
 c

le
a
r 

b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
.

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

In
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 d
o
n
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

.

S
e
c
o
n
d
 A

u
d
it
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 a

u
d
it
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 

to
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 D

M
T

 i
n
 O

c
t.

T
e
n
d
e
r 

c
lo

s
in

g
 d

a
te

 1
6
/0

9
/0

9
, 
w

it
h
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
in

 O
c
t.
 

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
it
ia

l

ta
rg

e
t.
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

A
 s

y
s
te

m
a
ti
c
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 a

s
s
u
ri
n
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 b

y
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

e
x
p
e
rt

is
e
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
. 
A

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

F
e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

A
 m

o
n
th

ly
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 f
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

p
la

n
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

o
n
g
o
in

g
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

F
e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

A
p
r-

0
9

B
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
ro

m
 w

h
ic

h
 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

F
e
b
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

A
u
g
-0

9
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 

a
re

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
.

A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 D

M
T

 i
n
 J

u
ly

. 
Q

A
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

m
e
t 
w

it
h
 S

D
M

s
 t
o
 d

is
c
u
s
s
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 T

e
a
m

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

, 
to

 u
s
e
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
 t
o
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 t
h
e
m

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
.

A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

'0
9
.

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

9

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

u
d
it
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 D

M
T

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

o
a
rd

. 
(s

e
e
 

2
.3

)

X
-r

e
f 
2
.1

O
c
t-

0
8

D
e
c
-0

9
B

a
s
e
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

s
h
o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

X
-r

e
f 
2
.1

1
.9

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 6
: 

T
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

s
e
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

 

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 

M
o
ra

n
,G

ra
h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 

S
te

v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

) 
H

ila
ry

 

P
a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
- 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
) 

.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
  
o
f 
p
e
e
r 

fi
le

 a
u
d
it
s
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
a
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
b
y
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

:

S
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
a
u
d
it
s
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 A

S
C

 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 (

S
e
e
 

1
.7

)

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
o
:

- 
D

M
T

 B
o
a
rd

 (
m

o
n
th

ly
)

- 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

- 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 v
ia

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 &

 Q
u
a
lit

y

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

u
b
g
ro

u
p

- 
S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 b

o
a
rd

S
e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
.

2
.3

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

2
.2

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 f
ro

n
tl

in
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti

c
e
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

rd
in

g
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 r
o

u
ti

n
e
ly

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
le

rt
s
.

2
.4

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
im

e
ly

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

1
.8

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

re
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
d
 t
o
 

c
o
a
c
h
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 1

0
 S

e
n
io

r 
P

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
r 

p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 c

o
a
c
h
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
u
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

c
o
n
c
e
n
tr

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
it
ia

lly
 o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 

in
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 a

d
u
lt
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 t
e
a
m

s
.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

P
a
g
e
 3

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 19



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

2
.5

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
a
n
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re

 

p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a

re
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
, 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
, 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 c

ir
c
le

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 -
 

s
h
a
ri
n
g
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
.-

J
a
n
 0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 t
o
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 

a
n
d
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 m

o
re

 c
re

a
ti
v
e
, 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 

w
a
y
s
 o

f 
in

te
ra

g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

Q
A

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 w

o
rk

. 
B

a
s
e
lin

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 (

s
e
e
 1

.7
)

B
ri

a
n

 R
a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 

M
o
ra

n
, 
G

ra
h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 

S
te

v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
) 

.

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

S
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

1
4
 t
e
a
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
s
s
io

n
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 

th
a
t 
c
a
re

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 a

re
 c

re
a
ti
v
e
, 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
, 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
s
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

d
o
p
ti
n
g
 a

 A
c
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

h
e
re

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
 s

h
a
re

d
, 
d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 

a
n
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

g
re

e
d
.

2
.6

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
o
 f
lo

w
 

fr
o
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
A

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

(P
A

Q
A

) 
s
u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 w

it
h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 

k
e
y
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

J
u
l-
0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

A
 c

o
re

 g
ro

u
p
 w

it
h
 T

O
R

 d
e
fi
n
in

g
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

.

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
) 

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

2
.7

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

o
rk

 

a
n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

h
o
w

n
 t
o
 f
lo

w
 

fr
o
m

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 P

A
Q

A
. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 m
a
d
e
. 
A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 i
s
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

O
c
t-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
A

u
d
it
 r

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

.

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
- 

A
d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

A
u
d
it
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r'
0
9

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 3
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
, 
e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
s
e
:

 -
 S

e
t 

o
u

t 
s
p

e
c
if

ic
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ra

b
le

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
 o

n
 s

ta
ff

 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
.

 -
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

ts
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

e
n

s
u

re
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
p

ra
c
ti

c
e
. 

S
ta

g
e
 1

: 
R

e
v
is

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

O
c
t 
0
7

D
e
c
-0

8
D

e
c
-0

8
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

S
ta

g
e
 2

: 
R

a
ti
fy

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s

D
e
c
 0

8
D

e
c
 0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t-

0
8

J
a
n
-0

9
J
a
n
-0

9
P

ro
to

c
o
ls

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

J
a
n
 0

9
J
u
n
e
 0

9
M

a
r-

0
9

Q
A

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
 f
ile

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
ro

to
c
o
ls

 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t-

0
8

J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9
M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

J
u
n
 0

9
J
a
n
 1

0
S

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 

a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
.

W
o
rk

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 

3
.4

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u
lt
s
 

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

fo
r 

L
e
e
d
s

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
c
a
re

rs
 a

n
d

p
u
b
lic

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
is

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 &

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 a
re

 a
b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

h
a
p
e
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 h

o
ld

 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.

J
u
n
 0

9
J
a
n
 1

0

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

is
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

 s
u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 b

o
a
rd

 b
y

J
a
n
 2

0
1
0
 f
o
r 

a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
r 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 G

ro
u
p
, 
C

a
re

r 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

G
ro

u
p
, 
a
n
d
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
in

 

A
u
g
u
s
t 
to

 s
c
o
p
e
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 a
n
d
  
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 

d
ra

ft
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 (

T
O

R
).

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 

b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 O

c
t' 

0
9
. 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

 H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

3
.3

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

S
p
e
c
if
y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

d
u
lt
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
, 

3
.1

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
s
.

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 f
o
r 

J
o
in

t 
W

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
, 
a
n
d
 

w
it
h
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
re

g
a
rd

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
, 
i.
e
.,
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 u

n
it
, 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

s
a
fe

ty
, 
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e
 l
e
a
d
s
, 
e
tc

.

3
.2

 A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

re
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
ip

lin
e
s

P
a
g
e
 4

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 20



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

4
.1

E
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

S
c
o
p
e
 o

u
t 
a
t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

e
c
u
re

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
. 
 S

e
e
 1

.6
, 
1
.7

 a
n
d
 1

.8
 a

b
o
v
e

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
y
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
 a

 p
la

n
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 a

 

m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
a
d
u
lt
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
 

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

R
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
g
re

e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 t
o
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 l
e
a
d
s
.

J
a
n
-0

9
M

a
y
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

A
p
r 

0
9

S
e
p
 0

9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

A
p
r 

0
9

S
e
p
 0

9

A
p

r-
0

9
S

e
p

-0
9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 k

e
y
 

s
ta

ff
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 b

a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 4

.1
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 

a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
h
o
w

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
. 
 U

s
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
.

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

F
ile

 a
u
d
it
 t
o
o
l 
a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

 b
a
s
e
 u

p
o
n
 a

u
d
it
 w

o
rk

 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 t
o
o
l 
h
a
d
 

g
o
n
e
 t
o
 D

M
T

 o
n
 3

0
th

 J
u
ly

'0
9
. 
T

h
e
 F

ile
 A

u
d
it
 T

o
o
l 
h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 f
e
d
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t.

A
p

r-
0

9
S

e
p

-0
9

Y
r 

1
: 
9
0
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

.

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

F
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

Q
tr

 1
 o

f 
0
9
/1

0
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t:

9
5
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
.

9
2
.5

%
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
 a

t 

n
ig

h
t.

A
p

r-
0

9
M

a
r 

1
0

Y
r 

2
: 
9
5
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

.

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
 S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

F
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

Q
tr

 1
 o

f 
0
9
/1

0
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t:

9
5
%

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
.

9
2
.5

%
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
e
e
l 
s
a
fe

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 h

o
m

e
 a

t 

n
ig

h
t.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 r
is

k
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 f
o
r 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n
 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 -

A
) 

D
if
fe

re
n
ti
a
te

 r
is

k
, 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

th
is

.

B
) 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
ro

u
n
d
 

ri
s
k
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
.

C
) 

 E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 

fo
r 

c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 

J
u
l-
0
8

D
e
c
-0

8
A

g
re

e
d

S
e
p
t 
0
8

1
/ 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

2
/ 
T

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 a
d
o
p
te

d
 w

it
h
in

 a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

E
n
s
u
re

 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

.

F
u
tu

re
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
s
 &

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 a

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
th

e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 (
s
e
e
 R

e
c
 1

.2
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

S
e
p
-0

9
A

ll 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

e
n
q
u
ir
y
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

ri
s
k
 

T
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 &

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 7
: 

T
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

g
re

e
 a

n
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 s
e
ri

o
u

s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 m
e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 f

o
r 

s
h

a
ri

n
g

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 w
it

h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n

c
ie

s
.

5
.1

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 5
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

le
rt

 t
o

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
ri

s
k
 f

a
c
to

rs
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 l
iv

e
 i
n

 s
it

u
a
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
o

n
g

o
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
.

W
o
rk

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 o

n
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
o
ls

 b
y
 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
. 

D
ra

ft
 v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
.

H
il
a
ry

 P
a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
),

 

R
is

k
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
ff
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 r
is

k
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 4
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

h
e
 e

m
e
rg

in
g

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
 t

h
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 s
e
t 

o
f 

m
in

im
u

m
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 s
p

e
c
if

ic
 r

o
le

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 a

d
u

lt
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
.3

E
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

M
o
n
it
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

In
te

ra
g
e
n
c
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
 A

 r
o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t
ra

in
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 m

e
t.
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
.

X
-r

e
f 
4
.1

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

R
)

S
e
p
-0

8

E
n
s
u
re

 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 o

f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
p
 0

8
S

e
p
 0

9

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

4
.2

E
v
e
ry

o
n
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
s
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

’s
 v

is
io

n
 

a
n
d
 h

a
s
 t
h
e
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 s

k
ill

s
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

D
e
c
-0

8

7
.1

R
e
p
o
rt

 o
u
tl
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

a
s
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t.
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
 

b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 r
e
g
a
rd

in
g
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 m
a
p
p
in

g
 k

e
y
 r

o
le

s
, 
a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
u
p
d
a
te

 

re
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 m

id
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

to
 o

u
tl
in

e
 w

a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

P
a
g
e
 5

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 21



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

N
o
v
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9
A

 p
ilo

t 
o
f 
tw

o
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
d
u
c
te

d

O
n
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
, 
to

 t
h
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 A

u
g
u
s
t.

T
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
  
O

c
t'0

9
.

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 g

e
tt
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 h

a
s
 

n
o
w

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
.

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
y
-0

9
F

in
d
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t
h
e
 b

o
a
rd

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

  
b
e
 

fe
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
ra

l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

is
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 O

c
t'0

9
.

8
.1

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

B
o
a
rd

 i
s
  
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 &

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

.

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

d
is

ti
n
c
t 
fo

rm
a
l 
d
e
le

g
a
ti
o
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 T

h
e
 C

h
a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

S
e
p
t 
0
8

O
c
t 
0
8

O
c
t 
0
8

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
 f
o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 i
n
 

L
e
e
d
s
 i
s
 c

le
a
r,

 t
ra

n
s
p
a
re

n
t 
a
n
d
 u

n
a
m

b
ig

u
o
u
s
 t
o
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

8
.2

L
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

B
o
a
rd

 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 &

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

.

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 

o
f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

J
u
n
-0

8
N

o
v
-0

8
N

o
v
 0

8
R

e
v
is

e
d
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
/ 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
a
u
d
it
s
 &

 g
o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
a
ll 

s
u
b
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
m

.
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

d
 b

y
 a

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
r.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

¼
ly

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

e
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
(s

e
e
 R

e
c
 2

.3
).

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 t
o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 b

y
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

8
.4

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 G

o
o
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 

P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

T
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 i
s
 r

a
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
f 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 i
ts

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

B
o
a
rd

(s
).

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 c
o
n
ta

in
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
 a

re
 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 f
u
tu

re
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
.

A
d
u
lt
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 B

o
a
rd

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 G

o
o
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 i
n
 

P
u
b
lic

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

T
h
e
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 &

 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
o
o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

M
a
y
-0

9
C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
/ 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

o
f 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
e
p
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9
8
.3

T
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
E

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 B

o
a
rd

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

la
n
, 
th

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 y

e
a
r.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 8
: 

T
h

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 b
o

a
rd

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 i
ts

 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 r
o

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f

o
r 

in
fo

rm
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 t

o
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
5
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 g
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

e
le

c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 c
le

a
r 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
a
d

u
lt

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
.

7
.2

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 c
o
n
d
u
c
ts

 

s
e
ri
o
u
s
 c

a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 u

s
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 

a
n
d
 r

e
v
is

e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
.

(S
e
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

 &
 6

).

H
ila

ry
 P

a
x
to

n

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
)

P
a
g
e
 6

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 22



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

9
.2

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
.

C
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
s
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e
rs

 t
h
e
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
tt
in

g
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 f
o
r 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
ro

u
n
d
 I
B

 &
 D

P
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
.

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 o

f 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 

1
/ 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 

2
 /
 F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 T
a
rg

e
ts

:0
8
/0

9
 7

5
9
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

, 
0
9
/1

0
 2

,4
1
7
 

re
c
ip

ie
n
ts

.

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
:4

3
%

 s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 D

P
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s

(B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

9
.3

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k

J
o
in

 ‘
In

 C
o
n
tr

o
l' 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

O
c
t-

0
8

M
a
r 

0
9

O
c
t 
0
8

L
e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 j
o
in

e
d
 t
h
e
 ‘
in

 C
o
n
tr

o
l,
’ 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s

(B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

9
.4

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
c
a
re

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 

a
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rs

o
n
, 
in

 a
 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r,

 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 m

e
t 
p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
y
 

c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
y
 a

re
 m

o
re

 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l

A
g
re

e
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

fo
c
u
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

 t
o
 s

ta
ff
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

1
/ 
T

im
e
lin

e
s
s

2
/ 
C

h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

3
/ 
R

e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
o
 f
u
n
d
 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 

N
I 
1
3
0
 %

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 c
lie

n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
lf
 

d
ir
e
c
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 i
s
 1

5
%

D
e
c
-0

8
A

u
g
-0

9

M
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 0
8
/0

9
:

- 
8
5
%

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
 

- 
9
0
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

- 
9
0
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 

S
W

 i
s
 c

o
u
rt

e
o
u
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

fu
l

- 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
 f
u
n
d
e
rs

.

J
a
n

e
 M

o
ra

n
,

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
n
o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

,

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
,

S
te

v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

M
e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 0
8
/0

9
:

- 
9
6
%

O
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
 

- 
9
7
.5

%
 S

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

- 
9
0
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 

S
W

 i
s
 c

o
u
rt

e
o
u
s
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

fu
l

- 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 q

u
a
lit

y
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 s

e
lf
 f
u
n
d
e
rs

.

9
.5

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 a

re
 

in
c
lu

s
iv

e
, 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l,
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
.

E
n
s
u
re

 S
in

g
le

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 (

S
A

P
) 

is
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 a

n
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
p
o
lic

ie
s
, 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
, 
to

o
ls

 a
n
d
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

1
0

A
ll 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 u
s
in

g
 o

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 

to
 S

A
P

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
. 
E

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

1
. 
D

M
T

 a
g
re

e
d
  
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

S
D

S
, 
ta

k
in

g
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
le

g
a
l 
o
b
lig

a
ti
o
n
s
, 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 S

A
P

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

r'
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 

2
 p

h
a
s
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 'h
y
b
ri
d
' o

f 
th

e
 S

D
A

Q
 a

n
d
 

E
a
s
y
c
a
re

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
ro

ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
S

D
S

 a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
 f
in

a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 S

A
P

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
ig

n
 

u
p
 t
o
.T

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
 o

n
 1

8
.0

9
.0

9

3
. 
T

h
e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 E

n
d
2
E

n
d
 P

ro
je

c
t 
is

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 m

o
v
in

g
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 

s
c
re

e
n
in

g
 b

y
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

p
o
in

t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t,
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
t 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

s
im

p
le

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 f
a
s
t 
tr

a
c
k
 e

n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 t
o
 a

p
p
o
in

t 
3
 T

M
s
 t
o
 l
e
a
d
 

o
n
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

.

3
0
%

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

. 
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 s

h
o
w

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

s
e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s

(B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

h
a
n
g
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

1
. 
5
2
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 R

A
S

 a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 
3
2
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
s
, 
2
1
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 1

1
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 a
re

 n
o
w

 i
n
 

re
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t.

2
. 
 S

o
 f
a
r 

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
o
r 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
 a

s
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
re

v
ie

w
s
 i
n
 d

a
y
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

3
. 
P

e
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

  
w

e
b
s
it
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 l
iv

e
 b

y
 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

4
. 
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
fo

r 
ro

ll 
o
u
t 
to

 b
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
  
to

 

D
M

T
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 E

x
e
c
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r.

5
. 
M

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
in

 i
n
it
ia

l 
ro

ll 
o
u
t 
a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 

D
M

T
  
a
n
d
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

te
rm

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 c

it
y
 

w
id

e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
.

 X
-r

e
f 
to

 9
.5

.

P
a
p
e
rs

 o
n
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 

b
y
 D

M
T

  
a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d
.

A
p
r-

0
8

M
a
r-

1
1

9
.1

P
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 

c
h
o
ic

e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k

P
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
o
le

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 C

a
re

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 D

M
T

 (
S

U
 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
B

o
a
rd

, 
T

e
a
m

 &
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

le
v
e
l)
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
2
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
li
s
e
d

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
s
 u

ti
li
s
in

g
 d

ir
e
c
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

lw
a
y
s
 s

e
iz

e
d

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 9
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

o
re

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
li
s
e
d

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
0
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
ro

m
o

te
 m

o
re

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s
, 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
c
u

s
e
d

 c
a
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g

.

P
a
g
e
 7

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 23



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 
(S

e
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 1

3
).

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

T
a
rg

e
ts

 0
8
/0

9
,O

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 i
n
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
: 

9
6
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 h
a
p
p
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
: 

7
8
%

 S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

:

-T
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

M
ik

e
 S

e
ll
s
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

2
0
,0

0
0
 C

a
re

rs
 b

o
o
k
le

ts
 a

n
d
 2

4
,0

0
0
 A

-Z
s
 w

e
re

 w
id

e
ly

 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

0
8
/0

9
. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

u
d
g
e
t 
H

e
lp

lin
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r,

 t
h
e
 t
ri
a
l 
o
f 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 o

n
 

0
1
.0

6
.0

9
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

b
o
u
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 

re
g
u
la

r 
s
u
rv

e
y
.

7
8
%

 s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

.

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 h

a
v
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
. 

T
h
e
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
(S

e
e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

1
3
).

E
v
id

e
n
c
e
 s

h
o
w

s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 m

a
p
p
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 

X
-r

e
f 
to

 1
3
.1

9
.7

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s

o
f 
s
e
lf
 d

ir
e
c
te

d
 c

a
re

 i
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

A
p
r-

0
9

S
e
p
-0

9

S
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
IB

/D
P

 a
s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f:
 

1
/ 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 

2
/ 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
  
D

e
liv

e
ry

 t
a
rg

e
ts

: 

 0
8
/0

9
 -

 7
5
9
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

, 

0
9
/1

0
 -

 2
,4

1
7
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

.

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
:4

3
%

 s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 

b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 D

P
.T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

M
ik

e
 S

e
ll
s
 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

 B
ri
a
n
 R

a
tn

e
r,

 

N
y
o
k
a
 F

o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 

T
a
y
n
o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

,

J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 
G

ra
h
a
m

 

H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y
 

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

 C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
ir
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
u
b
lic

it
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 a

b
o
u
t 
S

e
lf
 D

ir
e
c
te

d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

.

4
1
%

 s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 

o
ff
e
re

d
 D

P
. 

9
.8

Q
A

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

Q
A

 o
u
tl
in

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

 a
re

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l.
 

M
a
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9

Q
A

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
a
t 
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 

e
m

p
o
w

e
re

d
 t
o
 c

h
o
o
s
e
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 b

y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 o

f 

1
/ 
D

e
liv

e
ry

2
/ 
F

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 

3
/D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
a
rg

e
ts

: 

0
8
/0

9
 -

 7
5
9
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

 

0
9
/1

0
 -

 2
,4

1
7
 r

e
c
ip

ie
n
ts

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
: 
4
3
%

 o
f 
s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 

re
p
o
rt

 b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 D

P
. 
 T

a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
.

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
.

G
ro

u
p
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

n
 1

5
.0

9
.0

9
 a

n
d
 2

.1
0
.0

9
 t
o
 f
in

a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 

g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
.

X
-r

e
f 
9
.7

J
u
n
-0

9

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

9
.6

M
a
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9

P
a
g
e
 8

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 24



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

F
ro

m
 a

n
 0

7
/0

8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 o

f 
6
3
%

In
 Y

e
a
r 

1
: 
7
6
%

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

re
v
ie

w
.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

M
a
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9
In

 Y
e
a
r 

2
: 
8
0
%

 o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

re
v
ie

w
.

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
lo

re
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
th

o
d
s
 o

f 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h
t 
b
e
 m

o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

s
 

th
a
n
 l
iv

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
.

U
s
in

g
 C

P
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 p

o
p
u
la

te
 E

S
C

R
 a

n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
s
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
.

A
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 (
A

c
c
e
s
s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
) 

&
 (

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
).

D
e
c
-0

8
J
u
n
-1

0
Q

u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
.

J
u
n
 0

9
J
a
n
 1

0
7
5
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

re
v
ie

w
s
 m

e
e
t 
c
o
re

 q
u
a
lit

y
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

s
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

1
3
.1

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 f
o
r 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y

J
a
n
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9

T
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
: 
- 

C
ri
s
is

- 
T

a
s
k
 o

r 
Is

s
u
e
. 

- 
R

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
a
l 
S

h
o
rt

 T
e
rm

 o
r 

L
o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 

- 
In

d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
M

e
n
ta

l 
 C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y

(I
M

C
A

)

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
 A

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
in

it
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
n
g
 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
te

e
ri
n
g
 

g
ro

u
p
. 
S

e
c
o
n
d
 d

ra
ft
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

w
it
h
 t
im

e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

e
 N

o
v
'0

9
.

S
lip

p
a
g
e
 o

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
le

a
d
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

S
w

in
e
 F

lu
 D

u
ti
e
s
.

1
3
.2

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 

c
h
o
ic

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
n
tr

o
l.

T
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

 u
s
e
r 

le
d
 

a
d
v
o
c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
: 

- 
E

m
p
o
w

e
rs

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 .

- 
P

ro
m

o
te

s
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
 &

 S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
.

- 
M

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
&

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
.

A
u
g
 0

9
M

a
r 

1
0

In
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ti
n
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 L

e
e
d
s
 m

o
d
e
l 

T
im

 O
’S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

 D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

X
-r

e
f 
1
3
.1

1
4
.1

1
/ 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 c

le
a
r 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
, 
o
ff
e
r 

g
o
o
d
 c

a
re

 v
a
lu

e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 O

u
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
O

u
r 

C
a
re

, 
O

u
r 

S
a
y
, 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

2
/ 
A

lm
o
s
t 
a
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

&
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

, 
re

v
ie

w
 &

 a
re

 

in
te

g
ra

l 
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

P
ro

c
u
re

 e
x
te

rn
a
l 
e
x
p
e
rt

 a
d
v
ic

e
 t
o
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
 

a
n
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
re

g
a
rd

in
g
 s

te
p
s
 t
o
 s

h
if
t 

th
e
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 b

u
ild

in
g
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

1
/ 
L
A

 c
e
a
s
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 d
ir
e
c
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
r 

o
f 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

2
/ 
M

in
im

a
l 
&

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 r

o
le

 f
o
r 

L
A

 

in
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
p
ri
l 
0
9

O
c
t 
0
9

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
it
s
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

S
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

le
c
te

d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
g
re

e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 
a
 w

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

L
y
n
d
a
 B

o
w

e
n
 

(C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

E
n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(S
u
p
p
o
rt

 &
 

E
n
a
b
le

m
e
n
t)

C
o
rd

is
 B

ri
g
h
t 
h
a
v
e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 g

a
th

e
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

a
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
w

it
h
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

0
9
.

N
o
v
-0

8
A

p
r-

0
9

J
a
n
-0

9
S

e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r:

 0
8
/0

9
 

H
o
m

e
c
a
re

,
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

A
p
r 

0
9

M
a
r 

1
0

0
9
/1

0
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
C

a
re

 a
n
d
 D

a
y
c
a
re

W
o
rk

 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o
 d

a
y
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re

 i
s
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

1
4
.5

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 f
o
rm

a
l 
jo

in
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 h

e
a
lt
h
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 j
o
in

tl
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 P

C
T

 f
o
r 

 -
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l)
 

c
a
re

,

J
a
n
-0

9
O

c
t-

0
9

F
o
rm

a
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
 L

P
C

T
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
  
jo

in
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
, 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

k
e
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

M
a
rk

 P
h
ill

o
tt
 

(C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e
d
s
. 
A

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
9

R
e
v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
s
, 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

lig
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 

m
a
n
n
e
r 

in
lin

e
 w

it
h
 F

A
C

's
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
.

A
g
re

e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

ri
s
k
 f
a
c
to

rs

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

.
  
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

1
1
.2

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
3
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
u

il
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

id
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
a
d

v
o

c
a
c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 s

p
e
c
if

y
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 i
t 

s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

s
e
d

 t
o

 e
m

p
o

w
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
4
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 a

n
d

 c
h

o
ic

e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 r

e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
o

d
e
rn

is
in

g
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a
l,
 b

u
il
d

in
g

s
-b

a
s
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o

th
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 m

e
t

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
1
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

d
e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

ta
l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
li
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

re
g

u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 m

e
t.

B
ri

a
n

 R
a
tn

e
r,

 N
y
o
k
a
 

F
o
th

e
rg

ill
, 
 J

im
 T

ra
y
 n

o
r,

P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 

M
o
ra

n
, 
G

ra
h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 

S
te

v
e
 B

a
rd

s
le

y
  
(S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

1
1
.1

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

B
ri

a
n

 R
a
tn

e
r,

 

N
y
o
k
a
 F

o
th

e
rg

ill
,

J
im

 T
ra

y
 n

o
r,

 P
h
il 

S
c
h
o
fi
e
ld

, 
J
a
n
e
 M

o
ra

n
, 

G
ra

h
a
m

 H
e
ff
e
rn

a
n
, 
S

te
v
e
 

B
a
rd

s
le

y

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
rs

)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 &

 e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o

th
e
 t
im

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

re
g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 m

e
t

1
4
.4

D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 c

le
a
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 Q

A
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
.

E
x
te

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 

d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

R
e
v
is

e
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 f
o
rm

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
s
t 
2
0
0
9
. 
S

ta
ff
 b

ri
e
fi
n
g
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y

S
D

M
's

. 
W

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

le
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 

a
ls

o
 m

e
e
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f
o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
.

P
a
g
e
 9

A
u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 25



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

1
5
.1

P
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h
e
ir
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 P

la
n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 U

rg
e
n
t 

C
a
re

 G
ro

u
p
 i
s
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

re
v
is

in
g
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
p
ro

to
c
o
l,
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t:
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 1

/ 

th
e
 r

o
le

s
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
ls

 a
re

 c
le

a
r.

2
/ 
th

e
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t
im

e
ly

, 

s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
d
ig

n
it
y
 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.

3
/ 
a
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
s
o
lv

in
g
 d

is
p
u
te

s
 i
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
.

 O
c
t 
 0

8
N

o
v
 0

8
 N

o
v
 0

8

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
im

e
ly

 &
 s

a
fe

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 d

ig
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t.

R
e
g
u
la

r 
re

p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 J

o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
s
.

P
h
ili

p
 S

c
h
o
fi
e
ld

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

 (
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

(L
e
e
d
s
 N

H
S

)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

N
o
v
 0

8
M

a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

M
a
r 

0
9

N
o
v
 0

9

N
e
w

 D
e
la

y
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
  
w

it
h
 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
ls

.

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
  
g
o
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
  
ra

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
..

1
5
.3

T
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 

a
re

 l
e
a
rn

e
d
 f
ro

m
  
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
.

R
e
g
u
la

r 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 P

la
n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 U

rg
e
n
t 
C

a
re

 G
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 (
J
S

C
B

)

J
a
n
-0

9
A

p
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
o
r 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 o

f 
2
7
.

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

te
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

 f
ro

m
: 

- 
R

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

.

- 
C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

.

- 
U

s
e
r 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 

J
S

C
B

P
h
ili

p
 S

c
h
o
fi
e
ld

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

R
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

rg
e
n
t 
c
a
re

 

g
ro

u
p
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 p

la
n
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

re
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 

in
 t
h
a
t 
re

p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
  
b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 j
o
in

t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 b

o
a
rd

 i
n
 N

o
v
'0

9
.

1
8
.1

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 a

 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 w
h
e
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

 g
a
p
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

, 
in

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 c

a
re

rs
 &

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

, 
o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
ra

is
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

w
h
ic

h
 e

n
s
u
re

s
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
y
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 i
t.

A
p
r-

0
9

J
u
l-
0
9

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 &

 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
. 
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
re

rs
 a

re
 

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

, 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

W
e
b
s
it
e
 p

a
g
e
s
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

D
e
c
 0

8
M

a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
p
r-

 1
0

S
e
p
-1

0

P
e
o
p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
ir
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
s
e
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
u
n
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 h
o
s
p
it
a
l 

a
d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
im

e
ly

 &
 s

a
fe

 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
in

ta
in

s
 

d
ig

n
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t.

N
e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
, 
te

rm
s
 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 L

T
H

T
, 
N

H
S

 

L
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 A

S
C

.

N
e
w

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
5
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 b

y
 f

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

s
 e

x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e
s

1
8
.3

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
6
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 b

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u

t 
c
le

a
r 

re
c
ip

ro
c
a
l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 w

it
h

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 f

o
r 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
.

C
a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 h

o
w

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

 7
8
%

 o
f 
s
u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 i
s
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
s
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
b
a
s
e
lin

e
. 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 &

 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

1
5
.2

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
8
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 a

v
a
il
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
re

r'
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

P
h
ili

p
 S

c
h
o
fi
e
ld

(S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
a
re

rs
 c

o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T

h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

th
e
ir
 c

u
lt
u
re

, 
s
e
x
u
a
lit

y
, 
a
g
e
, 
g
e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 r

e
lig

io
n
.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
)

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g

(L
e
e
d
s
 N

H
S

)

P
u
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 
m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
u
re

 u
p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 ,
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

r 

s
u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
  
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 c

a
re

rs
.

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
e
d
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 h

o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
, 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d
 d

is
p
u
te

s
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 

a
n
d
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
tu

a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

P
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

 a
n
d
 A

S
C

, 
i.
e
.,
 H

a
rr

o
g
a
te

, 
B

ra
d
fo

rd
, 

W
a
k
e
fi
e
ld

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
7
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 s

tr
e
n

g
th

e
n

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 
d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 b

y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 a

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
o

lv
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 f
ro

m
 c

o
n

c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

m
u

lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

li
n

a
ry

 w
o

rk
.

P
a
g
e
 1

0
A

u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 26



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

1
9
.1

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 ,
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 c
a
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
a
re

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 a

re
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
lit

y
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
re

le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 A

S
C

 a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 s
o
c
ia

l 
is

o
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
o
lk

it
 

w
h
ic

h
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

A
p
r-

0
9

J
u
n
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

R
e
le

v
a
n
t 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

o
f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

is
 a

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 

1
9
.3

.

M
ik

e
 S

e
lls

 

(C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r)

, 

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

.

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

1
9
.2

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

la
ri
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

ll 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 

c
o
m

m
o
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 
(C

A
F

)

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 t
o
o
l 
 i
s
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 a
ll 

v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r 
/ 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
le

 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
T

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 C

A
F

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
(A

ls
o
 s

e
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 9

.5
)

A
u
g
-0

9
M

a
r-

1
0

S
ta

ff
 i
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

s
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
 1

9
.3

. 

J
e
m

im
a
 S

p
a
rk

s
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
fo

rm
 a

s
 a

 r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 

N
H

S
 L

e
e
d
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 H

e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

. 
 T

h
e
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
a
n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
o
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 

a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

.

1
9
.3

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
fo

c
u
s
 u

p
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 

p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 v

ia
 Q

A
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

J
a
n
-0

9
J
u
l-
0
9

J
u
l-
0
9

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 u

s
e
 

o
f 
p
re

v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
 f
o
c
u
s
 u

p
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 

p
re

v
e
n
ti
o
n
 &

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

T
o
  
in

c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
:

1
/ 
s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n

2
/ 
re

v
ie

w
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

3
/ 
s
u
rv

e
y
s

4
/ 
e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 c

a
s
e
 f
ile

 a
u
d
it
s

5
/ 
h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
a
d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 n
u
m

b
e
rs

 e
n
te

ri
n
g
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 (

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
),

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

2
0
.1

 T
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 

th
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
f 
L
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 J

S
N

A
 &

 s
h
a
p
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 O

u
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
O

u
r 

C
a
re

, 
O

u
r 

S
a
y
, 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s

A
g
re

e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 o

f

J
S

N
A

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
P

u
b
lis

h
 c

o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 f
ro

m
 

in
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

.

D
e
c
 0

7
 

F
e
b
-0

9
F

e
b
-0

9

A
ll 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
w

h
o
le

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 s

o
 

th
a
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

a
n
 l
in

k
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.

J
o
h
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
, 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

in
 p

la
c
e
.

1
/ 
V

ir
tu

a
l 
te

a
m

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 g
ro

u
p
s
.

W
o
rk

 h
a
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 o

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f
o
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
. 
A

n
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

. 
A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 J

S
C

B
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

0
9
.

S
o
m

e
 m

o
d
e
ls

 o
f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

i.
e
.T

h
e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

M
H

.

2
/ 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

S
o
m

e
 J

o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 C

L
T

 o
n
 

th
e
 7

th
 J

u
ly

.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
b
ro

a
d
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

jo
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
. 
A

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 

in
 S

e
p
t 
0
9

2
0
.3

D
e
te

rm
in

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
ic

h
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 c
h
o
ic

e
, 
c
o
n
tr

o
l,
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
e
llb

e
in

g

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

s
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 &
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

.

N
o
v
 0

8
S

e
p
-0

9

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 

lo
c
a
l 
m

a
rk

e
t,
 c

o
s
t 
c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 
q
u
a
lit

y
 f
a
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

lin
k
 t
o
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
.

1
/ 
P

u
b
lis

h
 j
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
.

2
/ 
R

e
v
is

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
u
b
lis

h
 O

ld
e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r.

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 l
in

k
 j
o
in

t 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

v
e
r 

ti
m

e
.

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
  
h
a
s
 g

o
n
e
  
to

 C
L
T

 o
n
 

th
e
 7

th
 J

u
ly

.

W
o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 f
u
tu

re
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
. 
In

it
ia

lly
 t
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
x
tr

a
 c

a
re

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

c
a
re

.

O
ld

e
r 

B
e
tt
e
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
. 
A

S
C

 d
ra

ft
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 e
le

m
e
n
ts

.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
1
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
a
 c

le
a
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

e
x
is

ti
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

).

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
9
 :

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

 o
f 

th
e
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

re
v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 p
re

v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

a
c
k
a
g

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
.

2
0
.2

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
0
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

g
re

e
 a

 s
e
t 

o
f 

jo
in

t 
fu

n
d

in
g

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
t 

o
u

t 
c
le

a
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

s
 w

it
h

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 j
o

in
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it

m
e
n

ts
 (

re
fe

re
n

c
e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 1
4
) 

J
u
l-
0
9

O
c
t 
0
8
 

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
a
re

d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 d
e
liv

e
r 

jo
in

t 

&
 s

in
g
le

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
),

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

,

C
a
ro

l 
C

o
c
h
ra

n
e
 

(D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

&
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 G
ro

u
p
s
 N

H
S

 

L
e
e
d
s
)

P
a
g
e
 1

1
A

u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 27



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

A
p
r 

0
9

O
c
t 
0
9

M
a
y
-0

9
1
/ 
U

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 d

ia
g
n
o
s
ti
c
 p

h
a
s
e

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

2
/ 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
h
a
s
e

E
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
/o

r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

, 
re

s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

f

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 c

a
re

rs
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

v
a
lu

e
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 t
ie

r,
 J

C
M

T
, 
M

e
n
ta

l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 T

e
a
m

s
, 
H

o
s
p
it
a
l 
D

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 J

a
n
 0

9
J
u
l-
0
9

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
)

M
ic

k
 W

a
rd

 (
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t)

,

 T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 
C

a
re

 (
T

O
C

) 
P

ro
to

c
o
l 
in

 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

/a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 O

p
ti
o
n
s
 

a
p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
f 
C

IC
 b

e
d
s
 i
s
  
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
S

C
 a

n
d
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 a

 

jo
in

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
C

IC
 (

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 C

a
re

) 

b
e
d
s
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 j
o
in

t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
/ 

m
a
rk

e
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
h
o
m

e
c
a
re

. 
  
(c

ro
s
s
 

re
f 
to

 2
0
.3

)

A
p
r 

0
9

O
c
t 
0
9

T
im

 O
'S

h
e
a
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
  
w

a
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 C

L
T

 

o
n
 t
h
e
 7

th
 J

u
ly

.

A
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
la

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 w

ri
tt
e
n
 t
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 d
o
m

ic
ili

a
ry

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

o
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 u

n
d
e
r 

a
 s

p
o
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t.
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

. 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

 o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
. 
J
o
in

t 
P

ro
to

c
o
ls

 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 s

p
o
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 
M

a
g
g
ie

 w
ill

 s
e
n
d
 y

o
u
 t
h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 b
e
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 m

in
u
te

s
 o

f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 r

e
g
a
rd

in
g
 b

ro
a
d
e
r 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

w
it
h
 N

H
S

 L
e
e
d
s
 a

re
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 
A

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

X
-r

e
f 
1
5
.1

,1
5
.2

,a
n
d
 1

5
.3

2
0
.4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
jo

in
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 n
e
e
d
s
 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s

E
n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h
a
m

 t
o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
jo

in
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
.

O
c
t 
0
9

D
e
n
n
is

 H
o
lm

e
s
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r,
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

S
te

v
e
 H

u
m

e
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

2
0
.5

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
a
fe

 d
ig

n
if
ie

d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

. 
 B

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
to

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
, 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 

re
v
ie

w
s
, 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
.

R
e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

re
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 o

n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

b
a
s
is

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 &

 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

A
p
r 

1
0

O
p
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 b

e
s
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
A

d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

P
a
g
e
 1

2
A

u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 28



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

2
2
.1

 E
x
p
lic

it
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
re

 m
e
t.
 T

h
e
y
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
, 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

Q
A

 o
f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 f
ile

 

a
u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 2

.2
 &

 2
.3

.

O
c
t 
0
8

M
a
r 

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

E
n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 1

0
0
%

 o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
.

J
o
h
n
 L

e
n
n
o
n
 

(C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
)

.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(L
e
a
rn

in
g

D
is

a
b
ili

ti
e
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

O
c
t 
0
8

M
a
r-

0
9

M
a
r-

0
9

R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
. 

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
ll 

s
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

w
ill

 b
e
 u

p
lo

a
d
e
d
 o

n
to

 n
e
w

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

S
y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 t
e
s
te

d
 i
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
a
. 

O
n
c
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
s
 r

o
b
u
s
t,
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

te
a
m

s
.

2
3
.1

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
te

a
m

s
 

a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
h
o
w

 t
h
e
y
 w

ill
 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
lly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

F
e
b
-0

9
J
u
n
-0

9

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
: 
ro

a
d
 

s
h
o
w

s
; 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
; 
te

a
m

 e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.
 

E
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

p
o
p
u
la

te
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
ir
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
 T

e
a
m

s
 k

n
o
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
. 
P

la
n
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 t
e
a
m

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
.

S
te

v
e
 H

u
m

e

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

R
e
c
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 p

e
e
r 

to
 p

e
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
e
a
m

s
 t

o

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
p
la

n
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 

s
lip

p
a
g
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 t
a
s
k
 b

u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
in

v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
. 

S
u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 

b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
O

c
t'0

9
.

X
-r

e
f 
2
2
.2

2
3
.2

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 c

a
s
c
a
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

T
h
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
s
 

w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

t 
a
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
.

J
u
n
 0

9
M

a
r 

1
0

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 t
e
a
m

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 v

ia
 q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 D

M
T

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

o
a
rd

.

S
tu

a
rt

 C
a
m

e
ro

n
-S

tr
ic

k
la

n
d
 

(H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

R
ic

h
a
rd

 G
ra

h
a
m

 

(Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

D
e
p
u
ty

 D
ir
e
c
to

r 

(S
tr

a
te

g
ic

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
)

1
. 
K

e
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 t
e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

2
. 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

e
x
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 D

M
T

.

3
. 
P

Q
A

 o
ff
ic

e
rs

 l
in

k
in

g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 t
o
 e

a
c
h
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

M
a
r 

1
0

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

2
2
.2

M
a
r 

0
9

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
3
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 m
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h

e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 b

y
 c

a
s
c
a
d

in
g

 g
e
n

e
ra

l 
in

te
n

ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 v
is

io
n

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
 i
n

to
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

e
a
m

 p
la

n
s
.

E
x
p
lic

it
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 

a
re

 m
e
t.
 T

h
e
y
 e

n
a
b
le

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
, 

le
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

 R
e
v
is

e
d
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 a
ll 

fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 

s
ta

ff
. 
 B

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 t
o
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
. 
T

o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
:

1
/F

ile
 a

u
d
it
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

2
/E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
.

3
/ 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
.

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
2
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
a
 s

y
s
te

m
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

o
m

p
li
a
n

c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
li
c
y
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 p

o
lic

y
  
to

 

in
c
lu

d
e
: 
1
/ 
A

lig
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

2
/ 
A

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 c

o
d
ic

il 
o
f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

fi
e
ld

w
o
rk

 s
ta

ff
. 

3
/ 
A

lig
n
 w

it
h
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

P
a
g
e
 1

3
A

u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 29



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

C
re

a
te

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
p
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
. 
(s

e
e
 R

e
c
. 
1
4
).

A
u
g
-0

9
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D

C
re

a
te

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
p
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
  
p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 (

s
e
e
 R

e
c
. 
1
4
).

S
D

S
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 D

M
T

. 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 

o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 S

e
p
t 
2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 
C

u
lt
u
r e

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

C
a
re

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
b
e
g
in

s
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

C
re

a
te

 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 
m

a
p
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 g

ro
u
p
s
 i
n
 A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
  
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 (

s
e
e
 R

e
c
. 
1
4
).

1
2
 m

o
n
th

 p
la

n
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

s
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 P
e
o
p
le

 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 h

o
w

 w
e
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 -

 u
n
d
e
rp

in
n
e
d
 b

y
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
k
ill

s
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
.

P
u
b
lis

h
 o

u
r 

3
 y

e
a
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
fl
e
c
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 (

2
0
0
9
 t
o
 2

0
1
2
) 

D
e
c
-0

8
M

a
y
-0

9

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 m

a
te

ri
a
ls

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
. 

L
a
u
n
c
h
 e

v
e
n
t 
w

it
h
 I
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
9
th

 

S
e
p
t.
 R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
w

it
h
 A

S
C

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 b

e
g
in

 i
n
 p

a
ra

lle
l 

w
it
h
 t
h
is

.

R
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 O

c
t 
2
0
0
9
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 

R
e
c
o
n
 1

4
O

c
t 
0
9

D
e
c
 0

9

J
u
n
e
-0

9
N

o
v
-0

8

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

s
k
ill

e
d
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g
e
 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

2
4
.1

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
.

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 2
4
: 

T
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il
 s

h
o

u
ld

 p
u

b
li
s
h

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e
fl

e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
h

a
p

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e
ts

 o
u

t 
h

o
w

 r
e
tr

a
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 j
o

b
 r

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 u

ti
li
s
e
d

 t
o

 d
e
li
v
e
r 

th
e
 s

k
il
ls

 n
e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 r
e
c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

2
4
.2

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

s
k
ill

e
d
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 

fu
n
c
ti
o
n
s

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
.

G
a
p
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
s
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

P
a
g
e
 1

4
A

u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 30



L
e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

A
im

/O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c
ti

o
n

L
a
s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

R
A

G

T
h

is
 M

o
n

th
 

R
A

G

P
la

n

S
ta

rt

P
la

n

F
in

is
h

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

S
u

c
c
e
s
s
 C

ri
te

ri
a
: 

H
o
w

 w
ill

 y
o
u
 k

n
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
ts

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 a

im
?
 I
e
, 
ta

s
k
 c

o
m

p
le

te
, 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
.

L
e
a
d

:
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 w

o
rk

?

C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e
r:

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

im

R
e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

P
ro

g
re

s
s

R
is

k
 R

e
p

o
rt

 

2
4
.4

A
ll 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s

A
 w

e
b
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
e
n
tr

a
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 A

 c
le

a
r 

d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
w

h
a
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 o
n
 o

ff
e
r 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
. 
E

x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
rs

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

N
o
v
-0

8
J
u
n
-0

9
A

u
g
-0

9

W
e
b
 s

it
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 b
y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
; 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
ro

m
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

s
k
ill

e
d
 s

ta
ff
 w

h
o
s
e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

s
y
s
te

m
s

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n

 (
D

e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
D

A
 n

e
w

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 

m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

. 
N

e
w

 r
e
p
o
rt

in
g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
.

2
4
.3

A
p
r-

0
9

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
)

O
c
t-

0
8

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 

a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 s

k
ill

e
d
 a

n
d
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
a
b
le

 w
o
rk

fo
rc

e

G
ra

h
a
m

 S
e
p
h
to

n
 

(D
e
p
u
ty

 H
R

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r)

A
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 s

e
t 
o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 e

x
is

t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
a
n
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 

c
a
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 a

re
a
s
 w

h
e
re

 s
ta

ff
 

c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 e

x
is

t.
 M

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
: 

1
/ 
S

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 

2
/ 
In

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 P

e
o
p
le

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
.

3
/ 
O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 d

a
ta

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 

A
S

C
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 B

o
a
rd

. 
A

ll 
o
f 
th

e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
: 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
s
, 
in

v
e
s
to

rs
 i
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 d

a
ta

, 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
b
a
la

n
c
e
d
 s

c
o
re

c
a
rd

 r
a
ti
n
g
s
 f
o
r 

s
e
n
io

r 

le
a
d
e
rs

, 
H

R
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
. 
Q

u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

(o
u
tl
in

in
g
 t
h

e

e
n
d
 o

f 
S

e
p
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
).

 T
h
e
 L

e
e
d
s
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
is

 

b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
m

p
a
c
t.

P
a
g
e
 1

5
A

u
g
u
s
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

 F
in

a
l

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) 
 
Date: 7th October 2009 
 
Subject: Scrutiny Inquiry: Personalisation Working Group – Update Report 
 

        
 
 

1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 At its meeting on 8 October 2008, the Executive Board received an update on the 
work undertaken in Leeds to prepare for the personalisation agenda, since the 
publication of the concordat “Putting People First” in December 2007. One of the 
outcomes from that meeting was that the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) be 
requested to monitor progress of the personalisation agenda. 

 
1.2 To assist the Scrutiny Board in monitoring progress of the personalisation agenda, in 

line with the Executive Board request, the Scrutiny Board requested a scoping paper 
be presented for discussion.  As such, an initial scoping discussion was held with the 
Proposals Working Group at its meeting on 12 December 2008. 

 
1.3 The Board also established a working group to undertake aspects of the inquiry.  The 

first meeting of the working group took place on the 16 March 2009.  Since that date 
four subsequent meetings have taken place.  

 
2.0 Scope of the Inquiry 

2.1 The agreed terms of reference which fully define the scope of the inquiry are 
attached at Appendix 1. 

 
3.0 Progress to date 

3.1  Minutes of the meetings up to and including August 2008 are attached at Appendix 
2 which defines progress with the inquiry to date.  

 
 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould
  

Tel: 247 4792 

 Ward Members consulted 
 (referred to in report)  
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 33



 
4.0 Updated Areas within the scope scheduled for investigation. 

The timetable for submission of evidence has been updated since agreement at the July 
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board to accommodate the availability of officers from Adult 
Social Services in October. The submission of evidence overall is not affected by the 
timetabled change which is now as follows: 
 
October 2009 
 

• Financial Budgets and Value for Money.  

• Early Implementer evaluation update and experiences of care managers and support 
officers. 

 
November 2009 
 

• Commissioned Services and Social Enterprise – The requirement to adapt and 
change.  

• Performance management and reporting mechanisms and meeting the challenge of 
Government Self Directed Support targets. 

• Workforce Transformation and Development update  
           
 

5.0 Recommendations 
 

6.1 The Scrutiny Board is requested to : 
 

6.1.1 Consider the contents of this report, terms of reference and agreed minutes of 
the personalisation working group.  

6.1.2 Comment on any specific aspects of the examinations undertaken by the 
Personalisation Working Group and on the progress to date. 

6.1.3  Determine if there are any specific / further areas that require additional  
scrutiny, including the nature and frequency of any future reports 

 
6.0 Background Papers 
 
7.1     Personalisation – Update to Terms of Reference and Appointment of co-opted 
member to the Personalisation Working Group - Appendix 1. 
 

Page 34



 
 
DRAFT    Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 
 
Date:  29th July 2009 
 
Subject:  Personalisation – Update to Terms of Reference and Appointment of co-
opted member to the Personalisation Working Group  
 
 

        
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 8 October 2008, the Executive Board received an update on the 

work undertaken in Leeds to prepare for the personalisation agenda, since the 
publication of the concordat “Putting People First” in December 2007.  At that 
meeting, the Executive Board resolved: 

 
(a) That progress made in Leeds towards the development of a more personalised 

system of social care through the Self Directed Support project and other 
initiatives be noted. 

(b) That, acknowledging the scale and scope of the transformation agenda and the 
challenge it presents, the approach taken in Leeds to deliver successful 
change be endorsed. 

(c) That the direct engagement of elected members in these developments be 
continued by the submission of further reports to this Board, involvement in 
workshops, seminars, conferences and in the recently established members’ 
forum. 

(d) That the Board notes the impact Self Directed Support will have on existing 
service provision including directly provided services and commissioned 
services in Leeds and the need to accelerate the transformation of these 
services to meet the challenges and impact of personalisation and customer 
choice. 

(e) That it be noted that progress and the pace of change regarding the delivery of 
Personalisation in Leeds will be the subject of some detailed feedback from the 
recent inspection of Older People’s Services. 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 
 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould  
Tel: 247 4792 

APPENDIX 1  

Page 35



(f) That the Scrutiny Board (Health and Adult Social Care) be requested to 
monitor progress of the personalisation agenda. 

 
1.2 The report presented to the Executive Board on 8 October 2008 is appended to this 

report for information. 
 
1.3 To assist the Board in monitoring progress of the personalisation agenda, in line with 

the Executive Board request, the Board requested a scoping paper be presented for 
discussion.  As such, an initial scoping discussion was held with the Proposals 
Working Group at its meeting on 12 December 2008.   

 
2.0 THE PERSONALISATION AGENDA 

 
2.1 As a result, subject to the agreement of the full Scrutiny Board, the working group 

agreed to focus on the following areas: 
Ø The common assessment framework; 
Ø Resource allocation system (linked to the Council’s stock of directly provided 

care); 
Ø Progress of the early implementer project. 
 

2.3  At the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board meeting in June 2009, it was recommended 
that further areas of inquiry were added to the scope of the inquiry as part of the 
work programme discussions. These have been incorporated under section 3. 
Included in section 3 are additional elements of inquiry identified by the 
Personalisation Working Group.  
 

3.0        SUBMISSION OF EVIDENCE 
 
3.1 The following formal evidence gathering sessions have been undertaken: 
 

Session one – 16th March 2009  
 
During the first session of the inquiry the working group examined: 
 

• A presentation of information relating to Personalisation in order to promote 
understanding  

• The work of the Self Directed Support Members Forum and progress made to 
date.  

 
Session two – 22nd April 2009  
 
During the second session of the inquiry the working group examined: 

 

• A Personalisation Update Report  

• The Resource Allocation System.  
 
Towards the end of both sessions, consideration was given to further and/or specific 
information required as part of the inquiry. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



3.2 The following formal evidence gathering sessions are scheduled: 
 
Session three – 30th July 2009.  
 
During the third session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 

 

• Self Assessment Questionnaire   

• The Process of assessment and review. 

• Early Implementer Trial progress update 
 
Individuals receiving SDS  will be asked to attend the working group to provide an 
account of their experiences of managing an individual budget. 
 
Session four - August 2009.  
 
During the fourth session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Customer and stakeholder engagement and involvement. 

• Peer Group Support 

• Consultation 

• Changing Perceptions and Promotion of Individual Budgets – plans and progress to 
encourage customers and providers to think differently about care provision. 
Publicity and the provision of information and advice. 

 
Customers involved in the development of SDS will be asked to attend the working 
group to provide details of the projects they are involved with.  
 
Session five – September 2009 
 
During the fifth session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• The Single Assessment Process - so people 'only need to tell their story once'. 

• Brokerage Services and the pathways to establishing and managing support. 

• Partnership Working 
 
Session six – October 2009  
 
During the six session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Commissioned Services and Social Enterprise – The requirement to adapt and 
change.  

• Financial Budgets and Value for Money.  

• Early Implementer evaluation update 
 
Session seven – Nov 2009 
 
During the seventh session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Performance management and reporting mechanisms. 

• How the challenge of meeting Government SDS targets will be met. 

• Workforce Transformation and Development update and experiences of Care 
managers and support officers. 

 
 

Page 37



Session eight – December 2009 
 
During the eighth session of the inquiry the working group will examine: 
 

• Risk Enablement Framework and Safeguarding.  
 

Towards the end of each session, consideration will be given to any further and/or 
specific information required as part of the inquiry and if any further sessions are to be 
scheduled into the work programme. 
 

3.3  To ensure that a full and detailed inquiry is undertaken input from service users, 
representatives, carers, and service providers will be sought. 

 
4.0 Personalisation Working Group  
            

The Personalisation Task Group was established in September 2008 as a mechanism 
for elected members to: 

• receive information 

• be consulted on the discharge of relevant delegated authority relating to the 
modernisation of Adult Social care and Self Directed Support services 

• be advised and consulted on local implementation of legislation, regulation, 
national guidance or Best practice 

• disseminate and cascade information from the Director of Adult Social Services 
to their respective political groups and provide feedback. 
 
The group has now been disbanded following the establishment of the Scrutiny Board 
inquiry and the Personalisation Working Group. Cllr Valerie Kendall has requested 
that she be co-opted onto the Personalisation Working Group as a former member of 
the Task Group adding value to the inquiry due to the accumulated knowledge gained 
since September 2008. 

 
5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1      The Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board is recommended to  

• note updated information relating to the submission of evidence contained within 
this report. 

• note the terms of reference may incorporate additional information should the 
working group or the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board identify any further scope for 
inquiry within the area of Personalisation. 

• Agree Cllr Valerie Kendall be co-opted to the Personalisation Working Group until 
such time as the inquiry is concluded. 

 
 
6.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None 
 
 

7.0        FURTHER RECOMMENDED READING  

• Executive Board report – Putting People First – Vision and Commitment to the 
Transformation of Adult Social Care (23 January 2008). 

• Executive Board report – Putting People First – Vision and Commitment to the 
Transformation of Adult Social Care (08 October 2008). 

• Putting People First – Working to Make it Happen (23 June 2008)  

Page 38



Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) 
Working Group 

 

Meeting held on 16th March 2009 
 at 2pm in the Civic Hall 

 

Present 
 

Councillor Judith Chapman (Chair) 
Councillor Stuart Andrew 
Councillor Penny Ewens 

Sally Morgan (Co-opted member) 
 

Others in Attendance 
 

 John Lennon, Chief Officer Access & Inclusion      
Richard Mills, Democratic Services 

 

1.0      Apologies 
 
1.1      An apology was reported from Joy Fisher, co-opted member who was  
           attending a Links seminar in the Town Hall. 
 
2.0 Introductions 
 
2.1 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and expressed regret that a   
           number of Members of the working group was not present to hear more  
           about the Personalisation agenda. 
 
3.0      Background Information 
 
3.1     Members received background papers considered by the Executive Board in  
          January 2008 and a copy of the Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Services) minutes of 
 7th January 2009 with specific reference to minute No 64 Personalisation. 
 
4.0      Updated Terms of Reference 
 
4.1 Members noted 
  
           (i) an updated copy of the Board's terms of reference for this  
           Inquiry on Personalisation which now incorporated a timetable for the 
 submission of evidence to this inquiry which projects into the new municipal 
 year. 
 
           (ii) that the terms of reference may need to be updated further if this working 
            group or the Scrutiny Board identify further scope for scrutiny of this issue.  
            
5.0      Presentation - Personalisation in Leeds 
 
5.1 The working group received a powerpoint presentation on the vision to 
 transform the whole of Adult Social Care into a system of self-directed support 
 which will enable eligible people needing social support and associated 
 services to design, choose and control that support. 
 
5.2 Members had been provided with a black and white version of the slide 
 presentation in advance of the meeting and colour copies were tabled at the  
           meeting together with a definition of terms headed "What do we Mean".  
 

Page 39



5.3      Members agreed 
 
           (i) That the presentation was excellent and the slides were very clear and  
           concise and sets out the future direction of services in Adult Social Care. 
 
           (ii) That the presentation and the definition of terms be circulated to all  
           Members of the working group. 
 
           (iii) That the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development be asked to arrange 
 a Members seminar on Personalisation for all Members of Council using today's 
 presentation. 
 
 (iv) That the report on Personalisation due to be considered by the Executive  
           Board be circulated to members of the working group as soon as it is available 
 
6.0 Issues Arising 
 
6.1 A number of issues were discussed including the: 
 

• Inequality of services within Councils 

• Government's desire for fair access to services and driving out the post code 
lottery but because of financial constraints had resulted in Council's  tightening 
their eligibility criteria 

• Expectation that by 2050 we will have our first 120 year old and an increasing 
aging population 

• Higher expectations of citizens 

• Mental Capacity Act 

• Principles of self-directed support 

• Whole system change for self-directed support 

• New service arrangements 

• Future model of support and the work of the Early Implementation Team who 
are currently operating a pilot with 70 -80 volunteers to determine if delivery is 
practical and affordable 

• Project this year to put Social Services in to Customer Services and to provide 
24/7 quality service 

• Commissioning 

• Brokering  

• Target set by Government is for the Council to have 30% of clients on  
      self -directed support by 2011 which equates to 5,600 people. The Council   
      currently has 932 direct payments  

• 37 Day Centres and 20 Elderly Person homes and brand loyalty 

• Need for Members to be appointed champions in each group to support and 
promote this service change 

• Concerns that the service may become less professional 

• IT and what is required to meet these changing needs 
 

7.0  Personalisation Task Group (previously known as the Self Direct members 
 Forum)  
 
7.1     Members noted the report of the Director of Adult Social Services updating       
          this Group on the work of the Personalisation Task Group (previously named   
          the Self Direct Members Forum) including its terms of reference. 
 
 

Page 40



 
 
 
8.0 Next Meeting 
 
8.1     Members noted that at its next session the working group on 22nd April 2009 will     
          consider: 
 

• The update report on Personalisation. 
 

• The Resource Allocation System (RAS) 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Present Members  
 Cllr Stuart Andrew - Chair 
 Cllr Suzi Armitage 
 Cllr Penny Ewens 
 Cllr Alan Taylor 
 Joy Fisher (co-opted member) 
 Officers  
 John Lennon – Chief Officer, Access and Inclusion 
 Jemima Sparks – Service Delivery Manager West, Adult Social Care 
 Robert Russell – Principal Financial Manager 
 Sarfraz Khan – Financial Manager 
 Sandra Newbould – Principal Scrutiny  Advisor 
  
  
Apologies Cllr Judith Chapman 
 Sally Morgan (co-opted member) 
   

No. Item Action  

1 Attendance  
 

The attendance and apologies as above were noted.   
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

 

2 Notes of Previous Meeting –  16th March 2009 
 
The draft notes of the meeting were presented and agreed. 
 

 

3 Personalisation Update Report 
 
A general report was presented to members of the group to update 
them on the implementation of self directed support (SDS). It 
highlighted the changes and the impact that will occur. 
 
Early Implementer – An update is due to be presented to the ASC 
Scrutiny Board on the 6th of May. All those taking part in the pilot are 
doing so voluntarily and are aware that some of the systems in place 
are being trialled. No one taking part is being disadvantaged 
financially.  
 
Support Planning – The first version of the Single Assessment 
Questionnaire is now being trailed. So far 30 customers have 
completed it. 
 
Care Management and Workforce Development – There will be 
requirement for the workforce to adapt and learn new skills to deliver 
the transformed service.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
 

Scrutiny Board Inquiry: Personalisation  
 

Working Group Meeting: 20th April 2009 
 

Page 43



Commissioning – Members recognised that service transformation will 
have a great impact on commissioned services and asked what was 
being done to support service providers through this uncertain 
process and also develop local social enterprise. They were advised 
that it is very difficult to commission for outcomes. Members 
requested that this area is discussed in greater detail at a future 
working group meeting.   
 
Information Technology and Management – there is a need to ensure 
that systems within Adult Social Services are in place to adequately 
record SDS cases. (Members may recall at the April ASC Board 
meeting they were advised that current systems do not have 
adequate functionality to ensure complete case management or 
provide relevant statistical information.) 
 
Other initiatives such as on line resources being investigated such as 
Shop 4 Support (www.shop4support.com).  
 
Communication – Information is being distributed in various formats, 
Newsletter, Web and shortly via DVD. Members requested a copy of 
the newsletter. Copy to be provided to SN 
 
Concern was raised that I.T. based assistance will be of no benefit for 
those without I.T. skills, it was clarified however that this was not the 
only means of support available just one of the options being 
appraised. 
 
Consultation – It was highlighted that there will be an element of 
consultation with Elected Members and the Public.  
 
Self Directed Support Reference Group – It was highlighted that some 
members of the SDS reference group are on the Early Implementer 
Project. The group expressed a wish for some representatives from 
the EI project to attend a working group to give candid feedback of 
their experiences of using and applying for a personalised budget. 
  
Peer Support – It was stated that peer support is an essential 
requirement to get systems up and running and the group would be 
interested to know at a future meeting what peer support 
arrangements are in place.  
 
Transition of Children to SDS in Adult Social Care – the Group also 
stated that they would like to know more about the arrangements to 
be implemented to manage to transition of young adults into the ASC 
system.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
SN/JL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SN/JL 
 
 
SN/JL 
 
 
 
SN/JL 

Page 44



4 The Resource Allocation System (RAS) 
 
Robert Russell introduced a report to the working group which 
explained the Resource Allocation System as a financial model for 
calculating the allocation of money to service users so that they can 
have greater levels of choice and control over the services they 
receive. 
The resource allocation system uses a points system which 
determines how much money is allocated based on a persons 
completed questionnaire. (SAQ) 
 
The group was advised that as individuals move to SDS, the historical 
anomalies of the current system should be removed, so that people 
with similar needs should receive similar amounts or funding.  
 
Currently local authorities are developing their own RAS’ however 
there may be a move to develop a national RAS which should create 
some consistency, and where a person moves to another authority 
enable resources to be allocated based on the assessment of the 
previous authority.  With ASC budgets being in local authority control 
the group noted that a postcode lottery could still exist depending on 
which local authority area someone lives in. 
 
The group was advised that there will be financial winners and losers 
with the RAS and that the system is still being trialled in order to iron 
out anomalies. A contingency is currently in place to minimise 
detrimental impact.  
 
The group noted that there is currently no appeals system in place 
and stated that there should be a formally documented process 
established for dealing swiftly with cases where the client wishes to 
dispute the level of budget provided. Those going down the SDS route 
should have access to information which advises them of the process 
should to be followed in the event of a disagreement. 
 
The group was also concerned that there may be disparity in amounts 
allocated due to age as reported by Age Concern and Help the Aged. 
The group was advised that Leeds operates only one RAS which 
means that those with similar support needs will be allocated similar 
amounts, regardless of age. Other authorities have operated more 
than one RAS where the type of RAS used was determined by age 
and other factors. This process has not been adopted by Leeds. 
 

 

5 Further Action 
 
Items to be incorporated into the groups work programme: 

• Peer support.  

• Changing Perceptions how to get service users to think 
differently about their own care. 

• Transition of children to Adult Social Care 

 
 
SN/JL 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

• Commissioning and Social Enterprise. 

• Individuals included in the pilot to speak to the working group 
about their experiences. 

 
Newsletter and Survey to circulate to members of the group. 
 
 
Session 3  - June/July 2009 
During the third  session of the inquiry the working group scheduled to 
examine: 

 
The Common Assessment Framework, Single Assessment 
Questionnaire, and associated areas,   

• The Process of assessment and review  

• Partnership working - so people 'only need to tell their story 
once'. 

• Provision of urgent social care support, particularly outside 
normal working hours. 

• Advocacy Services  
 
The Common Assessment Framework may be deferred to a later 
session.  
 

 
 
 
 
SN/JS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SN/JL 
 

6 Future Meeting Dates  
 
To be arranged at the first Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board  
 

 
 
SN 

Page 46



Present Members  
 Cllr Judith Chapman – Chair (JC) 
 Cllr Penny Ewens (PE) 
 Cllr Valerie Kendall (VK) 
 Cllr James McKenna (JK) 
 Cllr Veronica Morgan (VM) 
 Cllr Alan Taylor (AT) 
 Officers  
 John Lennon – Chief Officer, Access and Inclusion (JL) 
 Emma Lewis – Business Change Manager (EL) 
 Sandra Newbould – Principal Scrutiny  Advisor (SN) 
 Experts by Experience 
 Tizzy Taylor 
 Julie Rose 
 Joanne Smith ( P.A to Julie Rose) 
Apologies Joy Fisher (co-opted member) 
 Sally Morgan (co-opted member) 
   

No. Item Action  

1 Attendance  
 

The attendance and apologies as above were noted.   
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, particularly Tizzy, Julie 
and Joanne. 
 

 

2 Notes of Previous Meeting –   
 
The draft notes of the meeting were presented and agreed. 
 

 

3 Personalisation Presentation  
 
Members of the working group were advised of the policy and 
performance context of personalisation, and the impact it will have on 
services in a context wider than adult social care. 
 
The working group was also advised of the expected outcomes and a 
summary of the project currently being undertaken. 
 

 
 

4 The Self Directed Support  – The process of assessment and 
review.  
 
EL gave a brief summary of the report brought before the working 
group. With regard to the format of the self assessment questionnaire 
the group were advised that it was based on forms produced by other 
authorities, and taking advice from ‘In Control’ and users. The form 
presented was version 2, the first version being updated after users 
advised that it was ‘too busy’.  
 
 
 

 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
 

Scrutiny Board Inquiry: Personalisation  
 

Working Group Meeting: 30th July 2009 
 

Page 47



It is still accepted that part B is difficult to qualify, and it has come to 
light that users don’t feel that they should have to provide evidence for 
every statement that they make. Some information should be 
accepted on trust.  
 
Review – Each case is reviewed after 3 months and annually 
thereafter. Care managers may recommend that the review is 
undertaken at more regular intervals where necessary, particularly if 
there is a concern about an individuals ability to manage their own 
budget.  
 
It was confirmed that four individuals are now in receipt of their 
personal budget. 
 
The following concerns were expressed by the working group: 

• That it is not unusual for individuals to understate their care 
needs when making an application. 

• That it is very difficult to express a situation or a way of life on 
paper. 

• There seem to be inconsistencies regarding the freedoms for 
an individual to spend their budget on what they deem 
appropriate and the authority view on what is appropriate.  

• Transitional arrangements for Children and the continuity of 
care 

 
In response the working group were advised that although the form is 
called a Self Assessment Questionnaire services users are not left to 
their own devices when completing the form. Care worker support is 
provided over two visits.  
 
With regard to what a person may choose to spend their money on, 
an individual has the right to choose. Some activities may seem 
initially to have little apparent social care benefit, the example given 
was the purchase of a season ticket for the football. However on 
reflection activities such as this can be therapeutic, provide social 
interaction for the individual and provide some respite for main carers. 
The activity or purpose must be legal. 
 
Children tend to be placed in traditional homes but as they move into 
adulthood they may be better with a personal budget. This factor is 
being considered as children are transitioned into ASC. 
 
The working group asked the Experts from experience the following 
questions: 
 

• What change, if any has a personal budget made to your 
life, better or worse, and why?  

 
 
 

Page 48



Tizzy – Can’t wait to have a PA. to help her to look after her 
grandson which will give her husband some respite and also visit 
places such as art galleries or attend poetry readings.  
Julie – Is looking forward to going to being able to go to the quiz 
night at the pub, which was something she previously enjoyed 
doing. She likes to go out and about.  
 

• Have you had to seek any help or support from outside the 
Council to help plan and manage your support? 

       
Julie – Seeks help and assistance from her parents who are 
elderly. But does not like to ask and feels like she needs to be less 
dependent on them. They do provide a certain level of care, and 
are required to assist her when she goes to bed in an evening. 
Tizzy has the full time support of her husband who is also her 
carer. 
 

• Is there anything that you feel the Council should be doing 
that it isn’t? 

 
Not at the moment however it is essential that there is input from a 
Care manager and carer when filling out the questionnaire to 
ensure that all aspects of care are covered realistically and that 
forms are filled in correctly. 
 
JC expressed concern that this service would be particularly 
resource intensive and especially when the number of users who 
require a personal budget increases to 2000+ users. JL advised 
that setting up the system is time consuming but once this is done 
it should not be as resource intensive. 
 

• Do you have any views on the process of filling in the Self 
Assessment Questionnaire.  

       
Julie – Would not have been able to fill the form in on her own and 
had to seek assistance from her elderly parents, but did not like to 
ask. Trevor (Care Manager) has been very helpful.  
Tizzy – It would have been impossible for her to fill her form in on 
her own and sought assistance from her husband who is her main 
carer. They found it very difficult to quantify time elements in part 
B. She added that both her and her husband are articulate and 
literate people and it took them two hours to complete the form. 
The care manager still found inconsistencies with the form, which 
highlights that it is not easy to complete. 
 
Tizzy also suggested that given 5 potential options to answer a 
question is has been proven that people usually opt for the middle 
answer and recommended that there is an even number of options 
to choose from.  
 

Page 49



• Do you think there are any sector of the population who 
may struggle with an Individual Budget? 

 
Tizzy – Other cultures may struggle due to language barriers. In 
some cultures it may be difficult for women to define their own 
needs.  
 
JL added that the department is aware of the cultural and 
language issues that may cause difficulties. The questionnaire is 
produced in different languages but it is acknowledged that there 
is a challenge.  
 

• Is there any specific changes you would like to see? 
 
Tizzy – Does not think that people in general realise  that they can 
have help assistance and support and seek assistance from 
friends and family. But they will eventually and the Council needs 
to be prepared for this.  
 

• Do you feel confident in employing staff or is there any 
further support you feel is necessary? 

 
Julie – Would like to employ someone to get her into bed on a 
night. She thinks it would be difficult to employ someone for 30 
minutes per day. She is also considering employing two carers to 
ensure that there is cover when one is on holiday.  
Tizzy  - The help from ‘ASIST’ is a valuable service, and added 
that the Council could be more pro-active in providing a pool of 
PA’s.  
JL added that the ‘Slivers of Time’ scheme could be expanded to 
assist with this provision. 

 

• Do you feel that you have more control over your life and 
the right degree of flexibility? 

 
Tizzy – I will have when I get a PA. 
Julie – There will be some people who will not want to change. JL 
agreed with this statement and added that those who prefer a 
‘traditional’ service may still use this option. 
 
 

• Have you had to find cover or extra support at short notice 
(maybe due to illness), if so how easy was it. Do you have 
any concerns about this. Would you know where to go if 
you needed assistance or support? 

 
Both experts were not aware that they could contact ASS to help 
them find short term support. Julie advised the group that Jo is 
soon to go on holiday so she will have to depend on her parents 
during that time. She was not aware that Social Services would be 

Page 50



able to signpost her and assist her with a temporary arrangement.  
 
JL advised the group that if there was a problem long term with 
support arrangements this would trigger a care review.  
 
JC asked if a personal budget could be used to pay for respite 
care. JL advised that respite can be funded a number of ways. It 
can follow the traditional route or users can buy services direct or 
via the Council. 
Jo raised a matter that is causing confusion with the wider public. 
That personal budgets can be used to pay for a holiday but cannot 
be used for more beneficial uses such as hydro therapy. JL stated 
that this is a good example of how difficult it is to sometimes define 
social care and health care. An individual budget cannot be used 
to pay for health care. 
 

• Do we look after carers well? 
 
JL - There is a Carer strategy in place however we may need to 
expand this to include PA’s for which is there is a growing 
demand. The roles need to be attractive as a career path and the 
department will play a role in shaping the market.  

 
 
 

5 Early Implementer trial progress update 
 
The working group acknowledged receipt of the report as evidence of 
the progress so far and felt that much had already been covered in 
previous discussions.  
 
JC asked when the trial will finish and was advised that evaluation will 
take place in stages. A report will be presented to Executive Board. 
Although the project may finish the work will continue. 
 
JM asked how many people have been refused a personal budget. 
The group was advised that 46 have completed questionnaires, 13 
have had support plans agreed and 4 are receiving their budget. 
There is one case where things did not go to plan due to further health 
problems. Details of the case study was requested to provide the 
group of an example of a failed case. 
 
JL advised the working group that the RAS is working in 80 – 90% of 
cases. Where an individual has complex needs an alternative method 
of calculation is being utilised. 
 
AT requested data on the number of forms returned from the BME 
community. This information is to be provided and circulated to the 
group. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JL 
 

Page 51



 

5 Further Action 
 
Session 4  -14th August  2009 
 
During the   session of the inquiry the working group scheduled to 
examine: 

• Customer and stakeholder engagement and involvement. 

• Peer Group Support 

• Consultation 

• Changing Perceptions and Promotion of Individual Budgets – 
plans and progress to encourage customers and providers to 
think differently about care provision. Publicity and the 
provision of information and advice. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 Future Meeting Dates  
 

• 14th August  - 10am – 12 

• 18th September 2pm – 4pm 
 

SN 

Page 52



Present Members  
 Cllr Judith Chapman – Chair (JC) 
 Cllr Penny Ewens (PE) 
 Cllr Vonnie Morgan (VM) 
 Joy Fisher  (co-opted member) (JF) 
 Sally Morgan (co-opted member) (SM) 
 Officers  
 John Lennon – Chief Officer, Access and Inclusion (JL) 
 Emma Lewis – Business Change Manager (EL) 
 Leonie Gregson – Communications Officer (LG) 
 Sandra Newbould – Principal Scrutiny  Advisor (SN) 
 Experts by Experience 
 Rob Moriarty and PA (Dave) 
 Sandra O’Donovan and PA 
  
Apologies Cllr James McKenna 
  
   

No. Item Action  

1 Attendance  
 

The attendance and apologies as above were noted.   
 

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, particularly Rob, 
Sandra and their P.A’s. 
 

 

2 Notes of Previous Meeting –   
 
The draft notes of the meeting were presented and agreed. 
 

 

3 Customer and stakeholder engagement, involvement and 
consultation. 
 
LG introduced the paper presented to the working group. Explaining 
that she has been assigned full time to communicate information and 
generate publicity around personal budgets. 
 
The main stakeholders were identified as:  

• existing and potential social care customers  

• carers and relatives  

• the general public  

• the media  

• Leeds City Councillors  

• internal and external adult social care providers  

• adult social care staff (including front-line staff as a 
separate group)  

• other council staff (especially those in related areas such 
as housing, benefits, transport, learning and leisure) 

• partner organisations and other agencies. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
 

Scrutiny Board Inquiry: Personalisation  
 

Working Group Meeting: 14th August 2009 
 

Page 53



Published flyers, booklets and the most recent newsletter were shown 
to the working group. It was explained that in addition advertisements 
had been placed in local magazines and journals. Information is 
available on the LCC website, on the www.olderpeopleleeds.info 
website and on partner websites such as the NHS. 
 
Future communication material will include: 

• A guide to becoming an employer 

• The completed peer group support website 

• DVD – will be available in September 

• Consultation events at Day Centres and with Community 
Groups. 

• Workshops with carers, users and staff 

• Further media and publicity including billboard advertising. 

• Surveys to market test that the message is reaching the right 
people. 
 

Concerns raised:  
Are there enough sufficiently trained P.A’s in the market place? 
Professionally trained P.A’s are not always what users want, they may 
value someone who is friendly, trustworthy and dependable. It is the 
responsibility of Social Services as commissioners however to 
influence the market and make the role attractive.  
 
Will all employees be CRB checked? 
We strongly recommend this and  most people take up the offer of this 
being done for them by ASIST however it is up to the individual to 
decide if this is necessary. There are circumstances, for example 
where the potential employee may be a long and trusted friend of 
relative and the PB user does not wish them to undergo a CRB check.  
 
Will there be assistance provided in helping the individual 
employ the right person? 
Yes ASIST has been a valuable asset in helping in this area. A guide 
will also soon be published. 
 
Will information be on display in public areas and staff 
adequately trained to provide advice? 
Staff and the wider systems knowledge of the development of 
Personal Budgets remains one of our key  tasks Training in the new 
operating systems and t he Communication ,Consultation and 
Engagment plan is one of a number of  strategies  we will employ to 
ensure the advice our staff and others provide is appropriate, timely 
and accurate . Adequate display of information can be an issue which 
needs to be monitored. 
 
Communication will be required to a huge expanse of 
stakeholders how will this be managed? 
Communication is general at the moment in order to reach the wider 
audience but will become specific and focus on particular groups. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



What about people who want to plan for later life now? 
Putting People First  strategy describes how all Council' s will in the 
future be reshaping information the  available so that people can put 
their own preventative measures into place 
 This in part of the universal offer to all residents  whose aim is  to 
provide the public with access to high quality information that will 
allow them to make informed decisions regarding their own  health 
and wellbeing and help maintain their independence . 
 
 
 
Will people be disadvantaged because they do not have access 
to IT equipment? 
Our aim is to provide the same quality of information in hard copy or 
online .It can be bespoke to suit the users needs, i.e. large print, 
Braille. The peer website will also be adaptable to suit the individual’s 
needs. 
 
The working group asked for a full copy of the Communication, 
consultation and engagement strategy. To be sent to SN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LG 

4 Peer Group Support 
 
Sandra O’Donovan expert-by- experience explained to the working 
group the purpose of the peer support group, which currently consists 
of  7 individuals who are current direct payment/personal budget 
holders.  
 
The group provides peer support  to other people who manage their 
own social care services. They acknowledged that they need to look 
at how this can be provided effectively across Leeds and decided that 
initially setting up a phone line would be the best way forward which 
went live on the 1st of June. To date most callers have been from the 
older community, 50% have been aged 70+.  A website is currently 
being designed a demo of which was presented to the working group 
by Rob Moriarty. 
 
Concerns raised: 
Has the peer support group come across anyone who is not 
happy in the early implementer project? 
Sandra advised the working group that the RAS is not working for her 
as she needs 24/7 support. She stated that her case has been to 
review panel and it still has not been resolved. 
 
There are both people who are happy and unhappy, but in the main 
generally happy. The support group aims to give advice and give 
confidence to people who need to challenge decisions where they 
believe they are wrong.  
 
Do individuals have to wait unnecessarily for their personal 
budget and how long can disputes go on for? 

 

Page 55



 

Disputes can continue for months. An example was given to the group 
of a case where potentially the service user could loose a college 
place if the matter remains unresolved. The group was also advised 
that sometimes there is a difference in what an individual expects to 
receive and what they are actually entitled to.  
 
Is peer support in place for P.A’s? 
It was explained that currently a career as a P.A. does not seem to be 
long terms with much of the workforce move onto other things after a 
6 – 12 month period and therefore in the past it has been difficult to 
establish an ongoing support network. 
 
There was further discussion relating to problems with accessing 
direct payment which is not a matter for this inquiry. 
 

5 Further Action 
 
Session 5  -18th September  2009 
 
During the   session of the inquiry the working group scheduled to 
examine: 
 

• The Single Assessment Process - so people 'only need to 
tell their story once'. 

• Brokerage Services and the pathways to establishing and 
managing support. 

• Partnership Working 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 Future Meeting Dates  
 

• 18th September 2pm – 4pm 

• Oct, Nov and Dec dates to be confirmed 
 

SN 

Page 56



 
 
Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 
Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) 
 
Date:  7th October 2009 
 
Subject:  Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) –  Work Programme  
 
 

        
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the current work programme for the Scrutiny Board (Adult 
Social Care) for the remainder of the current municipal year.   

 
1.2 Also attached for Members consideration is an extract from the Forward Plan of Key 
Decisions for the period 1 October 2009 to 31 January 2010 as Appendix 2.  

 
2.0 The Executive Board meeting held on the 17th September 2009 dealt specifically with 
Development and Regeneration issued pertaining to the Leeds United Thorp Arch Academy 
and therefore does not come under the remit of the Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 

 
3.0 WORK PROGRAMME MATTERS 

 

3.1 The current work programme (Appendix 1) provides an indicative schedule of items/ 
issues to be considered at future meetings of the Board.  The work programme should be 
considered as a live document that will evolve over time to reflect any changing and/or 
emerging issues that the Board wishes to consider.   

 
3.2 The work programme also provides an outline of other activity being undertaken on 
behalf of the Board outside of the formal meetings cycle. 

 

 
4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

4.1 From the content of this report, its associated appendices and discussion at the meeting, 
Members are asked to: 

 

4.1.1 Note the general progress reported at the meeting;  
4.1.2 Receive and make any changes to the attached work programme; and, 

Specific Implications For:  

 
Equality and Diversity 
  
Community Cohesion 
 
Narrowing the Gap 

 

Electoral Wards Affected:  

 

 

 

Originator: Sandra Newbould 
 

Tel: 247 4792  

Agenda Item 11

Page 57



4.1.3 Agree an updated work programme. 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None. 
 

Page 58



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 17th June 2009 

Legislation and 
Constitutional Changes 

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on proposed changes to the 
Council's Constitution in relation to 
Scrutiny. 

 B 

Co-opted Members  

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on Co-opted Members. 
 

 B 

KPMG Audit Report 

To receive and consider a report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development on a scrutiny review by 
KPMG as at May 2009. 

 PM/B 

2009/10 Work Programme 

Input to the Boards Work Programme 
2009/10 - Sources of Work and 
Establishing the Boards Priorities and 
Determining the Work Programme 2009/10 

 B 

Draft Adaptation Inquiry 
Report 

Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) has 
now completed its inquiry on Major 
Adaptations for Disabled Adults . The draft 
report is brought before the board for 
consideration and where the content is 
agreed, its approval. 

 PM/D 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

VCFS Report  
 
 
 
 

Executive Board resolved that the Scrutiny 
Board (City and Regional Partnerships) 
inquiry report into the role of the voluntary, 
community and faith sectors in Council led 
community engagement be referred to 
Scrutiny Board (Children’s Services) and 
Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care) for 
consideration. 

Lead Officer – Sue Wynne RFS 

Meeting date – 29th July 2009  

Performance Management  
Quarter 4 information for 2008/09 (Jan-
March) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

Independence, Well-being 
and Choice – action plan 
update 
 
 

To consider progress against the action 
plan arising from the inspection report  

Outcome of the ASC Proposals Working 
Group meeting (20 July 2009) to feed into 
this item. 
 

RFS/PM 

Personalisation Working 
Group updated Terms of 
Reference.  

To consider the revised terms of reference 
for he 2009/10 municipal year for the 
Personalisation Working Group.  

 PM/DP 

P
a
g
e
 6

0



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

LINk Annual Report 
To consider the content of the LINk Annual 
Report and the potential impact on the 
2009/10 Scrutiny Work Programme 

Copies of LINk annual reports must be made 

available to the public and sent to the Secretary of 

State and the Care Quality Commission. 
Copies must also be sent to relevant Local 
Authorities, Primary Care Trusts, Strategic Health 
Authorities and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees. 

PM 

Safeguarding Board – 
Annual Report 

The board is requested to consider the 
Annual report and make recommendation 
as necessary.  

The report is scheduled to be presented  
at the July’s Executive Board. 

PM 

Meeting date – 20th August 2009 – Special Meeting 

Day Services 
The board has requested a specific 
meeting to look at the future plans for Day 
services across the city.  

Lead officer  - Dennis Holmes  RP 

Meeting date – 9th September 2009 

Performance Management  
Quarter 1 information for 2009/10 (April-
June) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

The Mental Capacity Act 
Update since  
implementation 

To consider a further report on progress 
made implementing the requirements of 
the MCA.   

Further update from May 2009  

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes. 
B 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Inquiry into Adaptations – 
Response from Director 
and Executive Board  

To receive and update on the formal 
response to the inquiry by the Director(s) 
identified in the recommendations and the 
views of the Executive Board  

This report is due to go to Executive 
Board in August 2009 

PM 
 

Terms of Reference - 
Inquiry into ‘Supporting 
Working Age Adults with 
Severe and Enduring 
Mental Health Problems. 

To receive and approve the draft terms of 
reference.  

The Adult Social Care Scrutiny Board 
expressed interest in holding a major 
inquiry in relation to Mental Health 
Services for working aged adults at its 
meeting on the 17th of June 2009.  

 

PM 

Care Quality Commission 
– self assessment report 

To receive an update on the self 
assessment report due to be submitted to 
the Care Quality Commission which will 
determine the annual rating for the service. 

Lead Officer – Sandie Keene 

 

 

 

PM 

Meeting date –  7th October 2009 

Independence, Well-being 
and Choice – action plan 
update 

To consider progress against the action 
plan arising from the inspection report  

Outcome of the ASC Proposals Working 
Group meeting September 2009 to feed 
into this item. 
 

RFS/PM 

Personalisation Working 
Group Update  

To consider the progress of the working 
group. 

Outcome of the ASC Personalisation 
Working Group meetings up to August 
2009 to feed into this item 

PM/DP 

P
a
g
e
 6

2



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Commissioning in Adult 
Social Care 

To consider an update report on 
commissioning within Adult Social 
Services. 

6-monthly report. – Previous March 09 
Additional focus on IWC Action Plan. 
Procurement timetable to be included in 
this report. 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes/ Tim 
O’Shea 

PM 

Day Services 

The board has requested an update 
following the meeting in August 2009 to 
further consider at the future plans for Day 
services across the city and the actions 
taken since the meeting.  

Lead officer  - Sandie Keene  RP 

Meeting date – 11th November 2009 

Income Review – Impact 
of price increases on 
Service users. 

To receive an update on the impact of 
price increases on services users. 

Report requested from April 2009 
Scrutiny Board Meeting 

RP 

Dignity in Care - delivery 

To receive an update on the current work 
and developments across the City  
highlighting how dignity is being delivered, 
what improvements are being made and 
the challenges ahead. 

 B 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Homecare provision 
Performance report on homecare provision 
across the City, including independent 
sector providers. 

Further update from May 2009 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes 

PM 

    

Meeting date –  16th December 2009 

Adult Social Services- 
Annual Review Report 
(2008/09) 
 
 

To consider the outcome of the annual 
rating review undertaken by the Care 
Quality Commission ( formerly the 
Commission for Social Care Inspection 
(CSCI)) for 2008/09  

Report  will be scheduled for Executive 
Board meeting on 9th December 2009. 
 

 

PM 

Inquiry into Adaptations – 
Performance Updates and 
Recommendation 
Tracking  

To receive a performance update and 
consider  progress made from 
recommendations made by ASC Board 
17th June 09 

Considered by Executive Board August 
2009. 

PM 
MSR 

Performance Management  
Quarter 2 information for 2009/10 (July - 
Sept) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

P
a
g
e
 6

4



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

    

Meeting date –  13th January 2010 

Personalisation Working 
Group Update  
 

To consider the progress of the working 
group.  

Outcome of the ASC Personalisation 
Working Group meetings September - 
December to feed into this item 

PM/DP 

Transitional 
arrangements for 
Children (up to 25 years 
of age) with learning 
disabilities into Adult 
Social Care Services. 

Following the establishment of the 
transitions team the board are to consider 
the policies, procedures and practices in 
place or in development to ensure a 
smooth transition from Child Social Care to 
Adult Social Care   

Representative from Childrens Scrutiny 
Board to be requested to join the board 
for this item. 
 
Lead Officer – Michelle Tynan 

RP/DP 

Meeting date – 10th February 2010 

Safeguarding Update  
To consider an update report since the 
implementation of performance measures 
to improve Adult Safeguarding. 

Quarterly update since the last 
Independence Wellbeing and Choice 
update on the 7th of October. 
 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes  

 

Personalisation 
Statement  

Board to agree a statement/report on 
progress so far. Response to Executive Board   

P
a
g
e
 6

5



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

    

 
 
 

   

Meeting date –   17th March 2010 

Commissioning in Adult 
Social Care 

To consider an update report on 
commissioning within Adult Social 
Services. 

6-monthly report. – Previous September 
09. 
Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes/ Tim 
O’Shea 

PM 

Performance Management  
Quarter 3 information for 2009/10 (April - 
June) 

All Scrutiny Boards receive performance 
information on a quarterly basis 

PM 

    

 
 
 
 
 

   

P
a
g
e
 6

6



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Item Description Notes 
Type of 
item 

Meeting date – 14th April 2010 

Personalisation Working 
Group Update  

To consider the progress of the working 
group.  

Outcome of the ASC Personalisation 
Working Group meeting to feed into this 
item 

PM/DP 

Annual Report 
To agree the Board’s contribution to the 
annual scrutiny report 

  

    

    

 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Working Groups 

Working group Membership Progress update Dates 

Personalisation Working 
Group 

Cllr. Judith Chapman 
Cllr Alan Taylor 
Cllr James McKenna 
Cllr Veronica Morgan 
Joy Fisher (co-optee) 
Sally Morgan (co-optee) 
 
 

Terms of reference agreed. All meetings 
scheduled. 

Confirmed  dates  
 
1) 30th July 
    9:30am – 12:00 
Committee Room 3 
 
2) 14th Aug  
    10.00am – 12:00 
Committee Room 1 
 
3) 18th Sept 
    2:00pm – 4:00 pm 
Committee Room 3 
 
4) 15th Oct 
     10:00am – 12:00 
Committee Room 2 
 
5) 11th Nov 
     2:00pm – 4:00pm 
Committee Room 3 
 
6) 10th Dec 
     10:00am – 12:00 
Committee Room 3 

P
a
g
e
 6

8



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Working Groups 

Proposals working group 

Cllr. Judith Chapman 
Cllr. Penny Ewens 
Cllr. Clive Fox 
Joy Fisher (co-optee) 
Sally Morgan (co-optee) 
 
 

Meetings scheduled. 

Confirmed Dates  
 
1) 20th July  

3pm – 5pm 
 Committee Room 5 
 
2) 29th Sept 
    10am – 12 
Committee Room 3 

Supporting Working Age 
Adults with Severe and 
Enduring Mental Health 
Problems 

Cllr Judith Chapman 
Cllr Clive Fox  
Cllr James McKenna 
Cllr Eileen Taylor 
Joy Fisher ( co-optee) 
Sally Morgan 
+ Health Board member(s) 

Draft Terms of Reference presented to 
Scrutiny 9th September 2009. 

Meetings to be 
Scheduled October 
2009 – January  
2010 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



Draft Scrutiny Board (Adult Social Care)  
Work Programme 2009/10  

Key:  

RFS Request for scrutiny MSR Monitoring scrutiny recommendations 

PM Performance management B Briefings (Including potential areas for scrutiny) 

RP Review of existing policy SC Statutory consultation 

DP Development of new policy CI Call in 

 

Unscheduled / Potential Items from 2009/10 

Item Description Notes 

Annual complaints report  
To consider the annual report and any emerging 
issues. 

Report published on 20 August 2008 

Continuing Care Implementation 
To consider the local impact and future activity 
associated with implementing the national 
framework for continuing NHS care.  

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes. 

Report presented to the Executive Board in 
October 2007. 

Valuing People Now 

To consider progress against the implications 
outlined in the report presented to the Executive 
Board in February 2008, alongside any future 
proposed actions. 

Lead Officer - Paul Broughton replacement 

Executive Board scheduled to receive an 
update in February 2009. 

 

Suggest that Day care provision is 
scheduled at some point into the annual 
programme for 2009/10 due to staff 
reduction and potential reduction in 
provision. 

No Secrets Review  
To consider the outcome and implications of the 
No Secrets Review the outcome of which will be 
announced by the Government.  

Lead Officer – Dennis Holmes 

 

P
a
g
e
 7

0



LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
For the period 1 October 2009 to 31 January 2010 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Temporary Staff Contract 
Adults and Children's 
Social Care 
To extend the current 
Temporary Staff 
contracts for Adults and 
Children’s Social Care 
for 5 months until the 
31st March 2010  to 
allow the integration of 
the contract into the 
new corporate 
temporary staff contract. 
 
 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 

1/10/09 Children’s and Adults 
Commissioning Board. 
 
 

None. 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
mark.phillott@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

St Anne's alcohol 
residential rehabilitation 
To extend the existing 
contract from 1 April 2010 
for up to 12 months to 
allow for a full tender 
exercise to be undertaken 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

1/10/09 Pre tender 
consultation with 
service users and 
stakeholders 
 
 

Report to the Director, 
contract monitoring 
information 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
sinead.cregan@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

1



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Leeds Skyline HIV/AIDS 
Social Care and Prevention 
Service 
To extend the existing 
contract from 1 April 2010 
for two years 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 

1/10/09 Needs Assessment is 
currently being 
undertaken 
 
 

Report to the Director, 
Contract monitering 
information 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
sinead.cregan@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Holt Park Wellbeing Centre 
Approval sought to 
affordability of proposals 
and to submit Outline 
Business Case to The 
Department of Health.  

Executive Board 
(Portfolio:Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

14/10/09 Consultation will be 
carried out with the 
following groups in the 
preparation of the 
Outline Business 
Case: Wellbeing 
Project Board, Client 
Department 
representatives, local 
community, planning.   
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Development 
ed.mylan@leeds.gov.u
k 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

2



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 

address to send 
representations to) 

Adult Social Care Home 
Care Contracts 
To extend the Adult Social 
Care cost/volume contracts 
and the independent living 
contracts to 31st August 
2010 to allow the 
directorate to procure a 
new type of domiciliary 
care contract from this 
date. 

Director of Adult 
Social Services 
 
 

29/10/09 Children’s and Adults 
Commissioning Board. 
 
 

None. 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
mark.phillott@leeds.go
v.uk 
 

Residential Care Strategy 
for Older People in Leeds 
Approval to consult on 
options for future provision 
of long term residential 
care services.   

Executive Board 
(Portfolio:Adult 
Health and Social 
Care) 
 

4/11/09 All stakeholders. 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
dennis.holmes@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

Annual Performance 
Assessment for Adult 
Social Services 
To note the outcome of the 
Annual Performance  
Assessment for Adult 
Social Services 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: Adult 
Health and social 
Care) 
 

9/12/09  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 
dennis.holmes@leeds.
gov.uk 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



 
 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Central and Corporate Councillor Richard Brett 

Development and Regeneration Councillor Andrew Carter 

Environmental Services Councillor James Monaghan 

Neighbourhoods and Housing Councillor John Leslie Carter 

Leisure Councillor John Procter 

Children’s Services  Councillor Stewart Golton 

Learning Councillor Richard Harker 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Peter Harrand 

Leader of the Labour Group Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Leader of the Morley Borough 
Independent Group 

Councillor Robert Finnigan 

Advisory Member Councillor Richard Lewis 

 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  

P
a
g
e
 7

4



 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



P
a
g
e
 7

6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 9th September 2009
	8 Commissioning in Adult Social Care
	9 Independence Wellbeing and Choice - Action Plan Update
	Aug Report final full list removed

	10 Personalisation Inquiry Update
	Personalisation terms of ref Appendix 1
	Note of Personalisation Working Group March
	Note of Personalisation Working Group April
	Note of Personalisation Working Group July
	Note of Personalisation Working Group August

	11 Work Programme
	5 work programme October
	Forward Plan - Adult Social Care Oct 09 - Jan 2010


